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THE YEAR IN OVERVIEW
Over the past year we have continued to focus on the challenges of sustainably managing our environment to ensure future generations
can enjoy all that Canterbury has to offer, while bringing a closer focus on the challenges we face. We need to better understand
our environment, including how climate change is affecting our region and what we can do to help our communities anticipate and
adapt to the likely effects, which are already being felt.
In this 2018/19 Annual Report, Environment Canterbury is reporting against the financial and Level of Service measures and targets
we set for the first year of the Long-Term Plan 2018-28.
For 2018/19, we are pleased to report that the work of our organisation and our partners and community has resulted in 95.8% of
the Levels of Service targets being met, evidence that for the most part we did what we said we would do and spent very close to
what we said we would spend.
In this document we report against all our Levels of Service.
Our work has a huge impact on the quality of life for everyone who lives in, or visits, Canterbury. In broad terms, we are responsible
for ensuring the air we breathe is safe, the water we swim in is clean, and the places we visit to recreate or to gather kai are protected
from pollution and natural hazards. When things aren’t as they should be – because of pollution or a natural event that could affect
people or property – we act to make sure people are safe, and that any environmental impacts are dealt with as quickly as possible.
We also work with other councils, Ngāi Tahu, industry, agencies and stakeholders across the region to ensure we have a robust
economy, thriving communities, good transport and resilient infrastructure.
Our Councillors make evidence-informed decisions that balance environmental, social, cultural and economic outcomes. We need
to meet the diverse and growing expectations of our communities, as well as fulfil our obligations under law, while keeping costs
affordable to ratepayers and to industry.
In May this year we declared a climate emergency and were the first council in New Zealand to do so. The declaration, which has
been followed by several other councils, was to highlight both the urgent need to address climate change issues, as well as the work
already being done to help the region respond.
We continue to deal with issues, such as freshwater pollution, that have taken generations to develop. Our first job has been to stop
further environmental damage, our second is to find ways to improve environmental and ecological outcomes. It is going to take a
collective effort and therefore the community's views, and actions, are essential to our work.
We are making progress, but we can only move as fast as the community can adapt, which includes how much individuals and
businesses can afford to pay for the necessary changes to improve environmental outcomes.
We are very pleased to report we have robust plans and policies, solid and realistic implementation programmes, dedicated and
engaged staff, as well as a tight control of costs and prudently managed finances.
Our overriding passion is making Canterbury an even better place to live, work and play for now and for future generations.
Steve Lowndes

Bill Bayfield

Chairman

Chief Executive

September 2019
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In this Annual Report the work of Environment Canterbury is reported under six portfolios as noted below.
·

Air Quality

·

Biodiversity and Biosecurity

·

Freshwater Management

·

Hazards, Risk and Resilience

·

Transport and Urban Development

·

Regional Leadership
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Freshwater Management
Implementing innovative solutions to manage our freshwater resource to support community use (mahinga kai,
drinking water and recreation), achieve ecosystem health and sustainable economic development.
Central to our freshwater portfolio is the Canterbury Water Management Strategy, a collaborative and community-led approach with
the vision: to gain the greatest cultural, economic, environmental, recreational and social benefits from our water resources within
a sustainable framework both now and for future generations.
The Canterbury Water Management Strategy is a partnership between Environment Canterbury, Canterbury’s city and district councils,
and Ngāi Tahu, working with water stakeholders. The Strategy, when established in 2009, set multiple goals across 10 target areas
for 2010, 2015, 2020 and 2040.
During the 2018/19 year, there was significant work, commissioned by the Mayoral Forum, to agree on additional goals for 2025 and
2030. The additional goals for the Canterbury Water Management Strategy were formally adopted in May 2019, following extensive
collaboration with Strategy partners.
There are six work programmes in our Freshwater Management portfolio:
• Canterbury Water Management Strategy Facilitation
• Environmental Monitoring and Progress Reporting
• Resource Management Act Water Framework
• Zone and Regional Delivery
• Regional Water Infrastructure Support
• Te Waihora Restoration

CWMS Facilitation
There are 10 water management zones throughout Canterbury, each with a water zone committee made up of community and rūnanga
appointees, as well as regional and local council representatives. There is also a regional water management committee, made up
of representatives from Environment Canterbury, territorial authorities, rūnanga and Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu, as well as one member
from each of the zone committees. It continues to address regionally significant water management issues such as infrastructure
and environmental enhancement projects.
Over the past decade, each Zone committee has produced a Zone Implementation Programme, which provides guidance on how to
collectively achieve the goals and targets set out in the Canterbury Water Management Strategy, as well as meet community
expectations.
Starting with the areas with the most challenging water management issues, many of the zone committees have also been asked to
produce a Zone Implementation Programme Addendum, which provides advice and recommendations for detailed planning rules
for specific catchments (these are the sub-regional sections of the Canterbury Land and Water Regional Plan).

Environmental Monitoring and Progress Reporting
Monitoring the environment and ecological state of water bodies is crucial in the work to protect and improve water quality across
Canterbury. Regular and systematic scientific measuring and monitoring is needed to assess whether we are making progress under
the Canterbury Water Management Strategy.
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Water levels and river flows were monitored at 149 sites during 2018/19. This included sites from the Waiau Toa/Clarence River in
the north to the Waitaki River in the south and numerous sites in between.
Water quality was monitored monthly at 125 sites and monitored quarterly at 49 sites. Groundwater quality was monitored at a total
of 467 sites.
We also sampled, over the summer months, 131 freshwater and coastal sites for recreational water quality. Recreational data is made
available for public use on www.lawa.org.nz usually within 24 hours of sampling.
We also monitored ecosystem health at 183 sites. This included looking at the number and diversity of macroinvertebrates (insects
and larvae), as well as an assessment of habitat health.

Resource Management Act Water framework
Over the past seven years, region-wide rules for freshwater areas have been enforced via the Canterbury Land and Water Regional
Plan (LWRP). The plan sets limits on water takes, as well as limits on the loss of nitrate and other pollutants from land to water
bodies.
We have put in place some of the toughest rules in New Zealand to govern water allocation and nitrate discharge, within the country’s
most comprehensive and restrictive planning framework.
Collaborative planning processes, led through water zone committees, have established stricter sub-regional rules for specific
catchments based on the recommendations in the Zone Implementation Programme Addenda.
Plan Change 5 to the Land and Water Regional Plan was made operative on 1 February 2019 and deals with the effects of land-use
(particularly farming) on water quality across the region. It introduced the requirements for farmers to apply for a land-use consent
to farm, targeted at properties with more than 50 hectares of irrigation or with winter grazing.
Following extensive community engagement work in 2017 and 2018, the zone committees in Waimakariri and the
Orari-Temuka-Opihi-Pareora zones completed their Zone Implementation Programme Addenda. These formed the basis for Plan
Change 7 to the Land and Water Regional Plan. In addition, Plan Change 7 included provisions on flow in the Waipara catchment and
has been notified for consultation later in 2019.
We are also using consent reviews, where appropriate, to achieve community goals for freshwater management. For example,
consents linked to the Ashburton River/Hakatere are being reviewed to see if we can find a way to increase river flows to meet the
minimums set in the Hinds Catchment sub-regional plan.

Zone and Regional Delivery
With the planning framework now largely in place, we are focusing on working with land owners to achieve 'action on the ground'.
Ngāi Tahu, community and industry groups are all involved in the work to ensure improved environmental outcomes.
Across the 10 water management zones there are around 270 'action on the ground' projects that Environment Canterbury is either
leading, supporting or monitoring. These projects are delivering multiple benefits – environmental, economic, cultural and social –
which align with the Canterbury Water Management Strategy targets.
The projects are across six broad areas of work:
Supporting farmers to achieve good management practices
Consent compliance (prioritising high-risk areas)
Drinking water quality
Biodiversity and ecosystem enhancement
Recreational and amenity values
Community relationships and understanding.
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Our work in this area is delivered through geographically-based zone delivery teams which include people with a range of skills and
expertise.
Our staff provide advice to landholders and water users on how to meet the strict nitrate limits, comply with new and tougher farming
rules, and improve land management practices. The agri-industry has also responded with an independent farm audit scheme, and
is working to identify where further on-farm action is needed.

Regional Water Infrastructure Support
The Regional Committee (Canterbury Water Management Strategy) continues to oversee the work programme for a regionally
integrated system of storage and distribution infrastructure. The aim is to ensure that Canterbury’s freshwater infrastructure is
aligned to the 10 target areas of the Canterbury Water Management Strategy.
Over the past year, the work programme was focused on maintaining or increasing the reliability of freshwater supplies; encouraging
efficient water use and storage; and ensuring a high standard of nitrate management.
This work programme includes a significant project to stop the lower Hororata, Selwyn/Waikirikiri and Irwell rivers from running dry
as they have in the past, support mahinga kai and biodiversity, as well as improve downstream water quality.
An example is the Selwyn near river recharge project. Costing $2.5 million over two years, it will be completed in 2020 and involves
constructing an off-take from the Central Plains Water scheme. This will supply a 'leaky basin' beside the upper Selwyn River/Waikirikiri
during dry periods so that recharged water will flow through the groundwater system.

Te Waihora Restoration
There is a co-governance agreement in place between Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu, Environment Canterbury, Selwyn District Council,
Christchurch City Council and the Department of Conservation to share responsibility for Te Waihora/Lake Ellesmere and the wider
catchment.
Whakaora Te Waihora is the joint programme of work under this co-governance agreement, which has the vision to restore and
rejuvenate the mauri and ecosystem health of Te Waihora within two generations.
An example of the work under this programme is the Whakaora Te Ahuriri. This $3.5 million project started in 2018 with the aim to
establish a new wetland to reduce nutrients and sediment headed for Te Waihora/Lake Ellesmere. It is also expected to improve
biodiversity and mahinga kai values.
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST LEVELS OF SERVICE TARGETS
In partnership with the Canterbury region's district and city councils and Ngai Tahu, facilitate the CWMS zone and regional
committees to provide ongoing and improved community input to water management decisions.
MEASURE

Facilitating opportunities for community engagement to progress delivery towards the ten target areas in all
catchment zones.

TARGET

At least 100 community zone and regional opportunities for engagement per year are held and will be reported
yearly for each zone and made available on our website.

RESULT

One hundred meetings have been held and annual reports are available on the Ecan
website. https://www.ecan.govt.nz/your-region/your-environment/water/whats-happening-in-my-water-zone/

Gather and make available information on water quantity, water quality, ecosystem health, soils, and progress towards
the CWMS targets.
MEASURE

We collect and report on the following relevant detailed data including; rainfall, river flows, river/stream water
quality, estuary water quality, ecosystem health, groundwater levels, groundwater quality, land, mātauranga
Māori (joint programme from year 2), recreational swimming, water use.

TARGET

Collection and reporting of the data is described in the detailed table below. This table includes; number of sites,
frequency of measurement, availability of information.

RESULT

The Targets Progress report is completed and available on website from late August 2019.
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Measures

Number of sites

Frequency of
measurement

Availability of
information

Rainfall

82

5 minutes

Hourly information available 6 times daily on
website

River flows river water
level/flow

149 recorder sites (127
flow, 22 water level or
lake level only)

Majority 5 minutes

Hourly information available 6 times daily on
website

River/stream water
quality

115
46

Monthly
Quarterly

Annual summary available on website

Lake water quality

33 (high country)
10 (lowland)
3 (lowland)

Monthly over summer
Monthly all year
Quarterly

Annual summary available on website

Marine water quality

36
13

Quarterly
Monthly

Annual summary available on website

Estuary water quality

6

Monthly

Annual summary available on website

Ecosystem health

183

Annual survey

Annual summary available on website

Groundwater levels

365
172

Monthly 15 minutes

Monthly updates available on website
Daily measurements available quarterly on website

Groundwater quality

342
121
4

Annually
Quarterly
Monthly

Annual report available on website
Monthly data update on the website

Land

Soil quality 350 sites
Soil quantity 25
paddocks

8-9 years
ten years

Annual summary available on website.

Recreational swimming
monitoring

52 river and lakes
46 beaches

Weekly over summer

Annual report on website by June each year.
Weekly data on LAWA website in summer months

Water use

All consents over 5l/s

Recorded daily by
consent holders

Annual water use report on website by September
each year

The information in the table above can be found at https://www.ecan.govt.nz/do-it-online/reporting/
Gather and make available information on water quantity, water quality, ecosystem health, soils, and progress towards
the CWMS targets.
MEASURE

A two yearly report is provided on the CWMS target areas. Data and narrative will be included in the report
commenting on progress towards these targets.

TARGET

A report is produced every two years; next report will be for the year ended 30 June 2019.

RESULT

The report will be available on the Environment Canterbury website in November 2019.
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In partnership with other parties, implement the recommendations in the zone implementation and regional programmes.
MEASURE

Work is undertaken according to annual work programmes that have been agreed by Zone and Regional
Committees.

TARGET

Publish an annual report with the Zone and Regional committees and publish an annual progress report towards
the ten CWMS targets which will be made available on our website.

RESULT

Annual report (individual reports/zone committee) on www.ecan.govt.nz in 'whats happening in my water zone'.

MEASURE

Agree joint work programmes in partnership with other parties to implement the recommendations in the zone
implementation and regional programmes.

TARGET

An agreed annual work programme is in place with Canterbury District Health board, Irrigation New Zealand, the
Canterbury Dairy industry, Fish & Game (North Canterbury and Central South Island). Publish two reports per
year on the progress towards implementation of the joint work programmes which will be made available on our
website.

RESULT

Joint work programmes have been developed with the Partners. Progress reports have been prepared.
https://www.ecan.govt.nz/data/document-library

TARGET

Publish two reports per year on the progress towards implementation of the joint work programmes which will
be made available on our website.

RESULT

Progress reports have been prepared.

MEASURE

Annual report on progress on the implementation of Good Management Practice across primary industries.

TARGET

Publish annual report on the level of adoption of Good Management Practice (including guidelines regarding
appropriate nutrient limits) to set nutrient limits, which will be made available on our website.

RESULT

Annual Report on the adoption of the Good Management Practice has been published.
https://www.ecan.govt.nz/reporting-back/farm-environment-plan-audits/

Work with the Zone committees to lead a community process to collaboratively establish environmental limits for water
quality and water quantity in Canterbury.
MEASURE

A schedule of RMA plans or variations is notified that reflects the community recommendations for environmental
limits.

TARGET

Orari-Temuka-Opihi-Pareora - 2018/19

RESULT

PC7 will be a single plan change covering three parts Part A - ‘Omnibus’, Part B - ‘OTOP’, and Part C - ‘Waimakariri'.
There is a single webpage for the plan. www.ecan.govt.nz/lwrppc7 with the details of the plan change and
process.

TARGET

Hurunui-Waiau - 2018/19

RESULT

PC7 will be a single plan change covering three parts Part A - ‘Omnibus’, Part B - ‘OTOP’, and Part C - ‘Waimakariri'.
Visit www.ecan.govt.nz/lwrppc7.

TARGET

Waimakariri - 2018/19

RESULT

PC7 will be a single plan change covering three parts Part A - ‘Omnibus’, Part B - ‘OTOP’, and Part C - ‘Waimakariri'.
See www.ecan.govt.nz/lwrppc7.
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Facilitate an integrated approach to development of water infrastructure in Canterbury that delivers on all the CWMS
targets.
MEASURE

An annual work programme that supports the integrated approach to irrigation development in the region, is
agreed with the CWMS Regional Committee.

TARGET

Publish quarterly progress report on the regional infrastructure work programme which will be made available
on our website.

RESULT

Reports on website www.ecan.govt.nz

Environment Canterbury will work in partnership to implement a joint programme to progress the vision to restore and
rejuvenate the mauri and ecosystem health of Te Waihora (Lake Ellesmere) and its catchment.
MEASURE

Deliver on joint work programme progress towards restoration actions for Te Waihora and its catchment.

TARGET

An annual progress report on the agreed Whakaora Te Waihora annual work programme which will be made
available on our website.

RESULT

The annual report is being tabled at the 30 August meeting of the Te Waihora Co-Governance Group for their
approval.

MEASURE

Deliver the Whakaora Te Ahuriri wetland restoration project.

TARGET

An annual progress report on the agreed Whakaora Te Ahuriri work programme which will be made available on
our website.

RESULT

The annual progress report will be available after 30 August once tabled at the Te Waihora Co-Governance Group.
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Biodiversity and Biosecurity
Creating a step-change in effort in the regeneration of freshwater, marine and terrestrial biodiversity.
Our work to protect freshwater ecosystems and deal with pests is one of the Council’s top priorities. Our main role as a regional
council is to protect the habitats and ecosystems that enable species to thrive, rather than work to protect individual species - this
sits with other agencies. Our focus on pests includes both plants and animals that threaten natural habitats and ecosystems as well
as productive land.
This portfolio is closely aligned with our work in the freshwater portfolio and involves local councils, Ngāi Tahu, the Department of
Conservation, Forest & Bird, as well as local trusts, landowners, industry and volunteer groups.
During the year we started, progressed or completed more than 300 projects to protect or restore the margins of water-bodies such
as the fencing of streams, rivers, wetlands or lakes, as well as removing gorse, broom, willow and other plant pests.
There are four work programmes:
• Regional biodiversity
• Braided rivers
• Wetlands
• Biosecurity

Regional biodiversity
The regional vision for biodiversity is set out in the Canterbury Biodiversity Strategy. We recently reviewed the 10-year-old strategy
and will work with signatories and others over the next year to integrate pending national policy changes as well as seek improved
implementation of the strategy as part of our commitment to biodiversity values.
During the year, we continued our focus on identifying, protecting and restoring biodiversity through on-the-ground actions such
as fencing off freshwater habitat, planting of native trees alongside water-bodies, predator control, and weed control and maintenance
in high-value areas.
We are working to better understand the priority areas for protecting and restoring biodiversity, and improving monitoring to assess
whether our projects are making a difference in biodiversity values.

Braided rivers
Our work to protect the natural character of braided rivers includes a ‘mountains to the sea’ approach – ki uta ki tai – which includes
working with communities to identify and protect braided river values.
Best practice management of the land adjacent to rivers is a project we are working on with Land Information New Zealand, the
Department of Conservation, Ngāi Tahu and other stakeholders. We are making sure we lead by example on the land we own.

Wetlands
We are working with willing landowners to prepare management plans for their wetlands. We are also working on a project to promote
wetlands as an asset to rural landowners – this is a Sustainable Farming Fund project led by the Landcare Trust – and involves a
sizable financial and staff contribution from Environment Canterbury. We are also continuing to map wetlands across the region to
assist with understanding their extent and distribution.
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At the local level, the 10 water zone committees have led community actions including planting and protection projects in partnership
with landowners and volunteer groups. We have invested nearly $20 million – over the past 10 years – in community-led and water
zone committee projects to enhance biodiversity.
This year we have worked with the community-led landscape-scale Pest-free Banks Peninsula initiative to fund their work towards
the peninsula being free of animal pests by 2050. When we checked in with the community on funding this work, there was considerable
support for it.

Biosecurity
Our new Regional Pest Management Plan (RPMP) came into effect in 2018.
The plan directs our work in combatting pests and includes work to prevent new pests from entering the region and becoming
established.
There has also been a greater focus on identifying pathways for how pests could enter the region, so we can minimise the risk of this
happening.
Wilding conifer control has been a key project. Since 2016, more than two million hectares (43% of the region) has been searched
and treated for wilding conifers, at a cost of $8.8 million. Our partners in this work are the Ministry for Primary Industries, Department
of Conservation, Land Information New Zealand, the New Zealand Defence Force, as well as landholders.
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST LEVELS OF SERVICE TARGETS
Environment Canterbury works with Ngāi Tahu, communities, territorial authorities, Department of Conservation, willing
landowners and other recreational, environmental and industry parties to protect and restore Canterbury's indigenous
biodiversity.
MEASURE

We collect relevant data to support effective decision making for biodiversity outcomes.

TARGET

A regional prioritisation process is completed by 30 June 2019.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury focuses on putting our increased biodiversity effort into the beds of lakes and rivers and
wetlands. This work relies on analysing exisiting information to help us prioritise sites for potential investment
to protect the existing ecological values.

MEASURE

Technical or other support is provided to Territorial Authorities to give effect to biodiversity policy and strategies.

TARGET

Where Environment Canterbury has provided support to a territorial authority, the quality and relevance of that
support is measured and reported through an annual survey of the territorial authorities.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury supported Timaru, Selwyn, Waimakariri, Mackenzie and Waitaki District Councils in the
development of biodiversity provisions as part of their District Plan reviews. Territorial authorities we worked
with reported that our staff understood the needs of their council, were well informed and easy to work with.
They also reported that they felt they had access to Environment Canterbury as a technical resource, that we
shared information and that we delivered on their expectations.

TARGET

Publish an annual report on the effectiveness of projects contributing to protecting and restoring Canterbury's
indigenous biodiversity which will be available on the website.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury has undertaken an effectiveness monitoring project and is currently reviewing 10 relatively
large biodiversity projects from the 2014/15 financial year. The five year time frame provides an opportunity to
measure the outcomes of the work. The results indicate that in the intermediate term, project outcomes are
being partially met, with a low risk to the continued achievement of the project outcomes; and in the longer-term
the overall likelihood of effectiveness is medium to high but is dependent on ongoing active management of the
project.
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Environment Canterbury administers and implements a Regional Pest Management Plan and provides incursion response
and pathway management to prevent the establishment and spread of pests in the region to support economic production,
biodiversity and mahinga kai.
MEASURE

Implementation of a Regional Pest Management Plan (RPMP) that meets the requirements of the Biosecurity Act
1993.

TARGET

Publish an annual report on progress towards the objectives in the RPMP which will be available on the website.

RESULT

The annual report is being finalised and will be available on Environment Canterbury website.

MEASURE

Development and implementation of pathway management initiatives.

TARGET

Work with others to develop and document pathway management initiatives indicating timeframes and milestones
and publish annually on the website.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury has worked closely with other stakeholders on pathway management initiatives to reduce
pest spread. Initiatives include On Farm Biosecurity, Check Clean Dry, Waitaki Lakes Lagarosiphon Management
Plan, Plant Pest Sales Outlet inspection programme, Pest Awareness programme, and the development of a
proposed programme to identify key pathways for exclusion pests. More information on this work can be found
on the Environment Canterbury website.

MEASURE

Maintain effective incursion response capability.

TARGET

Response capability as agreed under the National Biosecurity Capability Network will be available.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury continues to maintain a contractual agreement with the Ministry for Primary Industries
(MPI) to support any response to an incursion of national significance. MPI has not requested Environment
Canterbury assistance with any national responses this year.

Environment Canterbury works in partnership with other management agencies, Ngāi Tahu, willing landowners and local
communities to maintain the natural character and mahinga kai of Canterbury's braided rivers.
MEASURE

Environment Canterbury land is managed in a way that maintains the natural character of braided rivers.

TARGET

Lead the Braided River Action Group (BRAG) project to establish the ownership of land within and on the margins
of the large alpine-fed braided rivers by 30 June 2019.

RESULT

Land ownership and management was established for land within and on the margins of the Rangitata, Waitaki,
Rakahuri/Ashley and Ashburton/Hakatere Rivers. The complexity of the research to accurately assess the land
ownership and management was under estimated and required significantly more resources than allocated. The
agencies involved (Land Information New Zealand, Department of Conservation and Environment Canterbury)
have used the information from the work completed to date to make and propose significant changes to their
land management practices to support better outcomes for a range of values in braided river environments
including cultural, ecological and economic.

Environment Canterbury works in partnership with Ngāi Tahu, willing landowners and local communities to support the
maintenance of biodiversity and mahinga kai in Canterbury's wetlands.
MEASURE

Work with willing landowners on protection and maintenance of natural wetlands.

TARGET

At least five new wetland action plans are developed annually with willing landowners.

RESULT

Grant agreements and wetland action plans have been completed in collaboration with willing landowners in
the following areas: Mt Algidus, Tarerekautuku, Lees Valley, Grays Hill, and Double Hill Station. This work supports
our focus on increasing understanding and support for the protection of wetlands, particularly on private land,
through a voluntary social engagement process.
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Hazards, Risk and Resilience
Ensuring our communities have an improved understanding of, and resilience to, natural hazard risk including climate
change.
This portfolio aims to identify and reduce the risks posed by natural hazards, contaminants and waste, as well as dealing with
navigation/boating activities and increasing the visibility of how we incorporate climate change into our work. This involves Environment
Canterbury working collaboratively with communities and other agencies to ensure sustainable, enduring solutions to problems,
and to build our collective resilience.
There are seven programmes within this portfolio:
• Natural hazards
• Navigational and recreational boating safety
• Flood protection and control works
• Coastal environment and hazards
• Emergency management
• Contaminated land, hazardous substances, and waste
• Climate change integration

Natural hazards
We collected data on natural hazards, events, and process to ensure that decision makers and communities have the best available
information to manage risks from natural hazards. This included data on geological faults, liquefaction potential, historical tsunami,
potential distal-source tsunami, land stability, land elevation, river flows and floods, and groundwater levels.
Across Canterbury we provided natural hazards information for 130 Land Information Requests, undertook 164 Flood Hazard
Assessments, and provided advice on 178 more general flood/earthquake/tsunami hazard enquiries.
We continued to work with Christchurch City Council on tsunami evacuation zones for Christchurch and Banks Peninsula, using the
latest information and research to ensure accurate and feasible escape options for our community.
We also supported initiatives to better understand natural hazards across the region, which included collaborative work with all
Canterbury councils, the Civil Defence Emergency Management Group, and Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu.

Navigation and recreational boating safety
We continued our work to enable safe navigation for ships, commercial vessels, and recreational boaties. This included the safe
operation of Canterbury’s two large commercial ports (Lyttelton and Timaru) as well as other harbours including Kaikōura and Akaroa.
Through the Harbourmaster’s Office, we continued to raise awareness of the Navigation Safety Bylaw 2016. This bylaw sets aside
designated areas for specific activities, such as swimming, and mandatory wearing of personal flotation devices in certain
circumstances, and requires all boats to display unique identification.

Flood protection and control works
We maintained and supervised more than $508 million of flood protection infrastructure on Canterbury’s rivers. This included
monitoring and managing 59 river or drainage schemes that protect people, animals and property from flooding.
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This year we completed a 10-year $40 million project to protect Christchurch from the Waimakariri River, both under budget and
ahead of schedule. The significant infrastructure that is now in place protects an estimated $8 billion of community assets and has
enhanced the Waimakariri River Regional Park.

Coastal, environment and hazards
We continued to work with NIWA to collect data on Canterbury’s wave and sea levels using the Canterbury directional wave buoy
and sea-level recorders at Sumner (Christchurch) and Timaru. This data is used to build an understanding of Canterbury coastal
wave conditions and sea level variability and trends both in the long and short term. Understanding these key coastal processes
help us manage coastal hazards in Canterbury.
During the year, we conducted a long-term state of the environment monitoring programme by collecting data on shoreline changes
and the effects of coastal storms on the Canterbury coast. We now have more than 40 years of highly accurate survey information
on many areas of the coast. This information helps us make planning decisions now and into the future.
We provided critical scientific information to district councils to help enable good decision-making regarding the development and
management of coastal areas.

Emergency management
We facilitate the Canterbury Civil Defence Emergency Management Group, who are based out of the Justice and Emergency Services
Precinct in Christchurch.
We have been closely involved with Project AF8 (Alpine Fault Magnitude 8), including with scientific modelling, response planning
and community engagement. The aim is to ensure our communities are well informed and prepared for an alpine fault event, enabling
educated decisions around risk. Project AF8 is a partnership of all emergency management groups in the South Island and is funded
by the Government through the Ministry of Civil Defence & Emergency Management’s Resilience Fund.
We have also made a significant contribution to the development of the South Island Alpine Fault Earthquake Response (SAFER)
Framework. The SAFER framework will provide co-ordinated response and priority settings across the South Island in the first seven
days of response to an alpine fault earthquake.
More broadly, we responded to numerous events over the past year and provided assistance to other regions during their times of
need – especially during the Nelson/Tasman fire.

Contaminated land, hazardous substances, and waste
We provided advice and compliance support for hazardous waste issues, including asbestos, tyre dumping and chemical disposal,
as well as identification of potentially contaminated land. This often occurs when previous land use may have involved chemicals
that could still be present in the land.
Our two largest urban centres, Christchurch and Timaru, together with several more rural districts, such as Waimakariri and Selwyn,
have all now been mapped for hazardous land sites. Monitoring activity included an assessment of a site in the Timaru district for
potentially contaminated land and preparation of details to support remediation.
We also continued to work on the NZ Rural Waste Minimisation Project and the Waste Data Report, aimed at helping the rural
community to reduce environmental impact. We are now overseeing a pilot project in the Geraldine area.
We are developing an innovative new Disaster Waste Management Planning Tool in partnership with the Waikato Regional Council
and the Bay of Plenty Regional Council that is being funding by the Ministry of Civil Defence and Emergency Management. It is expected
that this tool will significantly improve environmental outcomes regarding waste management during civil defence emergencies.
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At an advocacy level, we continued to work closely with the Ministry for the Environment (MfE) and our regional council counterparts
on the development of the National Environmental Standards for end-of-life tyres and progress has been made towards a product
stewardship scheme for this problematic waste product.
We also worked with councils and industry to develop options for the disposal of coal tar in roading waste, and to promote best
practice for managing asbestos in soil to align with national guidance and Worksafe protocols.

Climate change integration
Climate change is already having an impact on Canterbury and the way we live our lives.
At Environment Canterbury, we incorporate climate change impacts into our work and decisions across portfolios, including in
relation to flood management, land and water planning, and a range of water management activities. Our Climate Change Integration
programme ensures a consistent approach across the organisation; and help to make sure this work is made visible, and that this
issue is front of mind for the whole organisation, including in our science, modelling and engineering work.
We also convene the Canterbury Mayoral Forum’s Regional Climate Change Working Group and are working to develop a shared
understanding of climate change risks and support collaborative adaptation planning.
We are taking a strategic approach to respond to changes in expectations from central government, and we will continue to respond
to the reality of climate change impacts and implications, the government’s legislative programme, our communities’ expectations
and needs, and the activities of our partners.
In May 2019, we declared a climate emergency in recognition of the importance and urgent need to address climate change for the
benefit of current and future generations. We were the first council in New Zealand to make such a declaration. Actions already
underway by Environment Canterbury illustrate the importance that we place on climate change and the need for us to proactively
respond to the risks and opportunities it presents.

PERFORMANCE AGAINST LEVELS OF SERVICE TARGETS
Delivering information and advice to communities and decision makers about natural hazards.
MEASURE

To provide transparency all peer-reviewed technical reports will be available on Environment Canterbury website.

TARGET

Peer-reviewed technical reports and advice tabled at Council meetings are available on our website three days
before the meeting date.

RESULT

No reports or advice were tabled at Council meetings. However, peer-reviewed reports made available on the
website during 2018/19 are:
Ote Makura (Goose Bay) floodplain investigation (PU1C/8519)
Kekerengu, Kapuku and Oaro floodplain investigation (PU1C/8569)
Waiau Toa/Clarence River floodplain investigation (PU1C/8602)
A coastal hazard screening assessment for Selwyn District (PU1C/8552)
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Providing flood alerts and warnings when agreed trigger levels are exceeded.
MEASURE

Agreed trigger levels determine when flood alerts and warnings are required.

TARGET

All flood warning events that exceed trigger levels are notified on Environment Canterbury's website when notified.

RESULT

Flood warnings were provided as required on the Ecan website.

MEASURE

Flood warning procedures will be reviewed after each significant flood event to continuously improve responses.

TARGET

Procedural review undertaken within 6 months of each significant flood event.

RESULT

No procedural reviews were undertaken because no significant events occurred.

Enabling safe navigation for ships and other commercial vessels in ports, harbours and coastal areas.
MEASURE

Risk assessment regime and Safety Management System consistent with the New Zealand Port and Harbour
Marine Safety Code.

TARGET

External review of the Safety Management System is undertaken when required by the Port & Harbour Safety Code
working group.

RESULT

Next external review due 2020. Annual self-assessments undertaken in conjunction with port companies according
to Code requirements have us remaining Code consistent. Safety Management System is available from the HMO
upon request.

MEASURE

Level of customer focus, quality management and continual improvement in the safety management system,
compliant with ISO 9001: 2015 certification.

TARGET

ISO 9001:2015 certification is maintained.

RESULT

The risk assessment regime and Safety Management System are approved by Maritime New Zealand, and the
current Code Compliance certificate is still valid. A surveillance audit was completed February 2018 and
ISO9001:2015 certification is maintained.

MEASURE

Availability of operational and emergency response function, and qualified, experienced and independent
harbourmaster.

TARGET

Advice and information from a harbourmaster is available to shipping operators, port companies and emergency
response organisations during working hours weekdays and on-call 24 hours / 365 days per year.

RESULT

There is an on-call duty officer 24/7 with Harbourmaster and Deputy Harbourmaster acting as back up. The
Harbourmaster is qualified as a Master Mariner with 14 years' sea-going experience.

Enabling safe navigation for recreational vessel users of the coast, harbours and inland waterways.
MEASURE

Communities, user groups and organisations receive guidance on the safe navigation of vessels within the region.

TARGET

A Navigation Safety Officer is available to provide advice and information to the community during working hours
weekdays and on-call 24 hours / 365 days per year for complaints and emergency issues.

RESULT

The navigation safety officer is available to, and works alongside, community and user groups across the region
assisting with understanding and implementation of the Navigation Safety bylaws.
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Flood protection and drainage infrastructure is maintained to agreed levels of service defined in Asset Management Plans
and in consultation with rating district committees.
MEASURE

Construction and maintenance of flood and drainage infrastructure will be completed in accordance with Asset
Management Plans.

TARGET

Consult annually with rating district committees to agree budgets and capital expenditure programmes that will
be recommended to Council.

RESULT

We completed consultation with all Rating District Committees to agree budget and capital expenditure
programmes for recommendation to Council in March.

MEASURE

Mana whenua values are recognised in annual work programmes.

TARGET

Environment Canterbury's Annual Work Programmes for flood protection and drainage infrastructure are informed
by annual engagement with mana whenua.

RESULT

Meetings held with Arowhenua, Waihao, Rapaki Koukourarata, Taumutu and Wairewa. Meetings with Ngai Tuahuriri
and Kaikoura Runanga remain to be scheduled.

Environment Canterbury 30 year Infrastructure Strategy outlines a schedule of river and drainage schemes to be reviewed
in order to deliver community outcomes.
MEASURE

Scheme reviews are carried out in the priority order set out in the 30 year Infrastructure Strategy.

TARGET

All scheme reviews undertaken as per table.

RESULT

The Halswell/Hurutini scheme review has commenced with a commitment to report back once review is complete.
Ashley and Kaikoura Scheme reviews are also underway.

MEASURE

All completed scheme reviews resulting in 'small' works commence within two years after review, 'medium'
two-to-four years after review, and 'large' two-to-ten years after review.

TARGET

100% of the time.

RESULT

No river reviews completed this financial year, therefore no recommended actions to be completed.

The extraction of the fluvial gravel resource is sustainably managed for flood and erosion control purposes while protecting
and where possible enhancing cultural and environmental values.
MEASURE

Percentage of permissions for gravel extraction are assessed for availability of gravel at the time of application.

TARGET

100% of the applications.

RESULT

Permissions for gravel extraction are being routinely processed at the time of application. Riverbed surveys are
undertaken via cross section and lidar which informs availability assessments.
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Maintain and continue to develop Regional Parks and 3,000 ha of pine forest, to deliver a mix of services including
biodiversity, recreation, protection of rating district assets and revenue.
MEASURE

Maintain and develop regional parks in accordance with Park Management Plans.

TARGET

2018/19 Commence development and open the Willows section of the Waimakariri River Regional Park.

RESULT

Three regional parks were maintained and developed in accordance with their management plans. Eight Regional
Park Plans are being progressively implemented, including six plans for different sections of the Waimakariri River
Regional Park (WRRP) and separate plans for Ashely Rakahuri (ARRP) and Lake Tekapo Regional Parks (LTRP).
Highlights this year included the completion of community consultation and operational planning for the next
section of the Waimakariri Park on the south side of the river near Halkett. All assets have been maintained.

Provide information on coastal hazards so our communities and partners can make informed decisions.
MEASURE

Work in partnership with NIWA to collect coastal data.

TARGET

Produce annual survey of coastal profile monitoring sites, and collect and report on wave and sea level data on
our website.

RESULT

Annual surveys were produced with additional reporting at Steep Head. Wave buoy and sea level recorders are
now also operational with data available on our website and at NIWA.

Monitor coastal water quality and ecosystem health.
MEASURE

Collect data and report on recreational swimming monitoring sites and ecosystem health.

TARGET

Produce report on recreational swimming monitoring sites during summer months, and on ecosystem health
annually.

RESULT

Lab results are uploaded to https://www.lawa.org.nz usually within 36 hours of the samples being collected.
The annual report is available on request.

MEASURE

Maintain a regional marine oil spill response capability

TARGET

Response plan and capability as approved by Maritime New Zealand, will be available 24 hours/365 days a year.

RESULT

Approved response plan is in place with experienced capability available 24 hours/365 days a year to respond
to incidents.

Active partnership of the Canterbury Civil Defence Emergency Management Group and provides for the support, information,
and administration needs of the group office and Emergency Coordination Centre.
MEASURE

Compliance with meeting the Service Level Agreement between the CDEM Group and Environment Canterbury.

TARGET

Full compliance with agreement, including providing 55 suitably trained staff.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury continues to be an active and involved partner of the Canterbury Civil Defence Emergency
Group and has provided for the needs of the group office and the Emergency Co-ordination Centre.
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Identify and monitor contaminated land.
MEASURE

Annual project to identify potentially high risk contaminated sites in a Canterbury district, in partnership with
the Territorial Authority and local Rūnanga.

TARGET

Year One: Completion of one district.

RESULT

A Hazardous Activities and Industries List (HAIL) project was completed for Timaru.

Support our communities to become more risk literate and resilient to climate change.
MEASURE

Number of climate change-related information and education activities delivered by Environment Canterbury
each year.

TARGET

Year 1: Promote activities via website; report total number; and set targets for years 2 and 3.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury is focused on ensuring our communities are aware of the increasing risk of climate
change. 21 activities were conducted, and targets for year 2 and 3 are no longer applicable - these were removed
by Council during the Annual Plan process.

MEASURE

Develop a process to ensure that climate change is robustly factored in to relevant Council decision across
portfolio's.

TARGET

Year 1: Process is documented and put into place.

RESULT

The process is now operational.
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Transport and Urban Development
Enabling a resilient, multi-modal transport system for the efficient movement of people and freight into, out of, and
within the Canterbury region.
Environment Canterbury has worked collaboratively with partners in this portfolio to develop, review and implement a number of
statutory and non-statutory plans and strategies, as well as to support the implementation of the transport workstream of the
Canterbury Regional Economic Development Strategy. Environment Canterbury has also continued to deliver public transport services
in the region. The portfolio comprises three strongly inter-related programmes:
• Public transport
• Regional transport
• Urban development

Public transport
We want everyone to have access to a safe and affordable transport network.
Environment Canterbury is responsible for investment in public transport services. We work alongside our territorial authority
partners who provide bus stops and shelters.
We provide public transport services in greater Christchurch and Timaru. These include buses, ferries and the Total Mobility scheme
for people who are unable to access regular bus services. We also support Community Vehicle Trusts of which there are currently
14 operating across Canterbury, with one more in Hawarden and Waikari due to start operating in the 2019/20 financial year.
In 2018/19 public transport usage in greater Christchurch has continued to grow, with a 1% increase building on the growth experienced
in the 2017/18 financial year.
Timaru patronage remained stable. We are continuing to work with partners to develop an alternative on-demand service model for
Timaru, which we hope to pilot during the 2019/20 financial year, subject to financial support from partners.
The Greater Christchurch Public Transport Joint Committee, which includes representatives from greater Christchurch councils and
other agencies, developed the new Regional Public Transport Plan (RPTP), which was completed in 2018/19. We are now working
with our partners as we implement the Plan. One of the first steps was a service review for the Waimakariri district.
The Public Transport Joint Committee partners also worked together to develop the Future Public Transport Programme business
case, which considers the long-term public transport network for Greater Christchurch and identifies potential future mass transit
corridors. The next stage of this work will take place in 2019/20.
In partnership with the Selwyn District Council, we are trialling new commuter bus services for Leeston, Darfield and West Melton.
We have also provided funding support for three new electric buses in Christchurch.
During the year we have also made a number of changes to routes, most significantly extending route 28 from Papanui north to
Casebrook and Northwood. In partnership with our operators, we have implemented interim changes to meet new requirements of
the Employment Relations Act, with further changes to be made to achieve full compliance in 2019/20.
While customer satisfaction levels remain high, we will continue to test new innovations and introduce new services where funding
is available.
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Regional transport
In Canterbury, the Regional Transport Committee (a sub-committee of Environment Canterbury) is responsible for overseeing the
prioritisation and co-ordination of transport investment in the region. The Committee met three times in 2018/19 to progress strategic
projects, consider and approve variations to the Regional Land Transport Plan, and advocate for improved transport outcomes in
Canterbury. The Committee monitors progress toward outcomes on a quarterly basis and the resulting Canterbury Regional Transport
Scorecard is published on Environment Canterbury’s website.
A key strategic priority for the Committee in 2018/19 was a project identifying the opportunity for freight mode shift in the South
Island. Environment Canterbury led this work in partnership with the South Island Regional Transport Committee Chairs Group, for
which we are the Secretariat. Stantec was commissioned to carry out this work and engaged with over 25 stakeholders – including
freight producing companies, freight transporting companies, and ports – across the South Island. These stakeholders highlighted
the reasons for the current choice of mode for carrying freight, and where opportunities may lie for optimising the mode for moving
freight.
This resulted in the identification and analysis of eight case studies for current and future movements of freight where significant
benefits would result from moving freight by rail. An analysis of these case studies, including the applicability of the findings to
broader South Island opportunities, indicated that a total investment of approximately $20 million to $30 million across the South
Island could result in $12 million to $18 million savings per year. The study has been provided to central government and the Canterbury
Regional Transport Committee will continue to advocate for optimising mode share.
We also continued work on a transport resilience stocktake. The ultimate aim of this work is to identify gaps in the resilience of our
transport network and hence support the Committee to prioritise investment to address these gaps through the Regional Land
Transport Plan.

Urban development
We have worked closely with local councils (Christchurch City Council, and Selwyn and Waimakariri District Councils), iwi and
government agencies through the Greater Christchurch Partnership to produce a future development strategy 'Our Space' for Greater
Christchurch under the National Policy Statement on Urban Development Capacity.
The strategy considers how best to accommodate the need for housing and business development capacity in Greater Christchurch
over the next thirty years based on the comprehensive strategic planning framework that already exists for the urban area. This
includes being guided by the vision, principles and strategic goals from the Urban Development Strategy.
The strategy also sets out minimum housing targets for Greater Christchurch. These targets will be inserted into the Canterbury
Regional Policy Statement and reviewed every three years as required by the National Policy Statement on Urban Development
Capacity.
The Partnership endorsed the final strategy in June 2019 and our Council adopted it in the same month.
We have also supported our strategic partners in Greater Christchurch in the development and implementation of regeneration plans
and proposals under the Greater Christchurch Regeneration Act 2016. This includes providing information and advice on relevant
regulatory matters related to the Canterbury Regional Policy Statement and other regional plans and making changes to these
statutory plans where necessary.
Our principal contributions under the Greater Christchurch Regeneration Act 2016 have related to the Ōtākaro Avon River Corridor
Regeneration Plan and Yaldhurst Recreation and Sports Facility Proposal.
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST LEVELS OF SERVICE TARGETS
Integrate land use, transport and hazards planning into the identification of land to provide for residential and business
growth.
MEASURE

Monitoring required by the National Policy Statement on Urban Development Capacity provides information on
urban development indicators for Greater Christchurch.

TARGET

Quarterly indicator reports are produced and published on the Greater Christchurch Partnership website each
quarter, beginning September 2018.

RESULT

The Greater Christchurch Partnership, of which Environment Canterbury is a member, reports a number of key
urban indicators for Greater Christchurch on its website. These indicators are updated on a quarterly basis,
where possible, and accompanied with related analysis and commentary.

MEASURE

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement responds to the requirements of the National Policy Statement on
urban Development Capacity, including setting minimum targets for development capacity in Greater Christchurch.

TARGET

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement is amended to include targets by December 2018, informed by an
urban development capacity assessment that is undertaken in accordance with the National Policy Statement
on Urban Development Capacity.

RESULT

The future development strategy was adopted in June 2019. This did not allow time for the target of inserting
housing targets into the Canterbury Regional Policy Statement by December 2018 to be met. The targets were
inserted on 25 July 2019.

TARGET

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement is amended, if required, every three years thereafter to respond to
further assessments required by the National Policy Statement on Urban Development.

RESULT

Not measured.

Assist strategic partners in the development, amendment or implementation of regeneration plans in line with the Greater
Christchurch Regeneration Act 2016.
MEASURE

Regeneration plans meet the requirements of the Canterbury Regional Policy Statement and other relevant
regional plans, including avoiding or mitigating natural and other hazards.

TARGET

Environment Canterbury provides submission of views to proponents on whether proposals meet the requirements
of the Canterbury Regional Policy Statement and other relevant regional plans.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury contributed information and advice on relevant regional regulatory matters. This
included providing formal submission of views on the Yaldhurst Recreation and Sports Facility proposal in October
2018 and the Ōtākaro Avon river corridor regeneration plan in December 2018.

MEASURE

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement and other relevant regional plans are amended, as required, to enable
a regeneration plan.

TARGET

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement and other relevant regional plans are changed to align with Ministerial
direction(s).

RESULT

Environment Canterbury amended the Canterbury Regional Policy Statement in December 2018 to give effect to
the ministerial direction made under the Greater Christchurch Regeneration Act 2016 to expedite the planning
changes needed to enable further development at the Yaldhurst Recreation and Sports Facility.
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Facilitate and support prioritised investment in Canterbury's transport network by local and central government.
MEASURE

The Regional Land Transport Plan 2018-2028 is monitored to allow the Regional Transport Committee to assess
implementation of the plan.

TARGET

Quarterly reporting to Regional Transport Committee to track progress against the regional transport indicators
set out in the Regional Land Transport Plan 2018-28.

RESULT

The Canterbury Regional Transport Committee (RTC) met three times in 2018/19. The meetings were held on 6
September 2018, 31 January 2019 and 23 May 2019. At each of the three RTC meetings, Environment Canterbury
presented a report to track progress against the regional transport indicators set out in the Regional Land
Transport Plan 2018-28.

MEASURE

The opportunities for, and barriers to, freight mode shift optimisation are identified so they can be used to inform
future regional transport planning and investment decisions.

TARGET

A report which outlines the opportunity for shifting road freight to rail or coastal shipping, is submitted to Regional
Transport Committee prior to finalising the Regional Land Transport Plan 2021-2031.

RESULT

This target will not be measured this year but will be achieved in the 2019/20 financial year. The target is required
to be achieved prior to finalising the Regional Land Transport Plan 2021-2031, which will not be finalised until
2021. Therefore progress is on track, with the RTC receiving a briefing on the report at the meeting on 23 May
2019 and due to receive the final report at the meeting on 8 August 2019.

Deliver a quality, cost effective public transport service that meets the needs of the community and results in increased
patronage.
MEASURE

Provide quality public transport services for customers.

TARGET

95% of passengers are satisfied or better with the overall service.

RESULT

Trip satisfaction continues to exceed the Long-Term Plan 2018-2028 target, reaching 96%, per the Christchurch
Metro User Survey 2019.

MEASURE

Provide Total Mobility scheme for transport disadvantaged people.

TARGET

95% of registered customers are satisfied or better with the service they receive when they engage with a Total
Mobility provider.

RESULT

Trip satisfaction continues to exceed the Long-Term Plan 2018-2028 target, reaching 96%, per the Total Mobility
Report 2018.

MEASURE

Number of communities who receive support from Environment Canterbury to establish Community Vehicle
Trusts where conventional public transport services are not feasible.

TARGET

100% of all communities that approach Environment Canterbury regarding vehicle trusts (and meet relevant
criteria) are offered support.

RESULT

100% of communities that approached Environment Canterbury received support per 2018-19 Vehicle Trusts
Performance Reporting.
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Air Quality
Ensuring the air we breathe supports health and wellbeing.
There are three programmes in this portfolio:
• Environmental monitoring and progress reporting
• Cleaner home heating
• Non-domestic emissions
Air quality in the region continues to improve thanks to the work of households and industry to reduce emissions, with support from
Environment Canterbury. This is part of the implementation of the Canterbury Air Regional Plan. A key change in the Plan was a shift
to ultra-low emission burners (ULEB) and this year has seen significant changes in the burners being authorised, including the first
ULEB which can be inserted into a fireplace. Significant research and development investment has been made by industry to support
the community's move to ULEB's.
The collective impact of this work has seen fewer high pollution days in urban centres. In some towns more needs to be done,
however, to bring emissions down to the National Environmental Standards for Air Quality set by central government and policy 6.7
of the Canterbury Air Regional Plan.
We monitored the air quality in eight airsheds: Christchurch, Rangiora, Kaiapoi, Ashburton, Geraldine, Washdyke, Waimate, and
Timaru. Timaru Clean Air Zone needs the greatest improvement to meet the NESAQ requirements. This is reflected in additional
spatial PM2.5 monitoring during winter 2018, as well as focused community engagement initiatives including education, advice and
partnership approaches. Our focus on Timaru and the subsequent effort by the community over the past few years is starting to pay
off.
One of our priorities is to ensure people are warm and dry in their homes, as we encourage the uptake of cleaning heating options.
This year we had 13,690 visits to the warmercheaper.co.nz website and we allocated $2.09 million in financial assistance to 548
households. This includes through the newly implemented Healthier Homes Canterbury programme which provides another option
for Cantabrians to install a cleaner heating option, with payments through the rating system.
Quarry dust has also been a significant concern for some residents, particularly during the rebuild phase following the earthquakes.
We have worked with the quarry industry and residents to establish boundary dust monitoring on the Yaldhurst quarries and this
has led to improvements in dust-related air quality.
We are also taking an innovative approach to making it better for residents who live near odorous sites. We are building relationships
and collaborating with stakeholders, industries and communities to identify solutions to manage odour, including an app to collect
crowdsourced information.
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST LEVELS OF SERVICE TARGETS
Our airshed monitoring and investigations inform our work programmes.
MEASURE

Air quality is monitored in gazetted airsheds and reported regularly.

TARGET

Airshed monitoring and reporting is completed to the National Environmental Standard for Air Quality requirements.

RESULT

Airshed monitoring and reporting was completed to the NESAQ requirements. Data is available on our website
and LAWA.

MEASURE

Air quality investigations are undertaken to provide further information on air quality.

TARGET

Ecan has the information it needs to inform work programmes.

RESULT

A range of investigations and reports were undertaken this year. A key project was monitoring Timaru air quality
from 19 sites over winter, including a mobile monitoring, to build a better understanding of Timaru air quality
issues. The results showed PM 2.5 concentrations across Timaru.

In Clean Air Zones, where home heating is the biggest contributor to winter air pollution, we work with groups, agencies,
homeowners and the wood burner industry to reduce PM10 emissions from home heating.
MEASURE

Better burning information is made available and accessed.

TARGET

Website visit numbers are included in our annual report. Smoky chimney intervention material includes better
burning information.

RESULT

Better burning information was provided in the second half of last winter and the first half of this winter. Our
advice has also been updated with the latest burning technique which burns more efficiently and effectively.

MEASURE

Assistance is available for households to upgrade their home heating.

TARGET

Numbers of households receiving assistance is included in the annual report. Healthier Homes Canterbury Loan
Scheme will run over ten years.

RESULT

This year we implemented the Healthier Homes Canterbury voluntary targeted rate scheme. This scheme will
run for ten years providing Cantabrians with a way to make the homes they own warm and dry. We also provided
subsidies for households with limited income to update to compliant forms of home heating.

MEASURE

The wood burner manufacturing/supply industry is encouraged to continue to develop cleaner burning technology
and relevant information is accessible to the public.

TARGET

Ecan's wood burner authorisation process is clear, up to date, and available on the website. Details of authorised
burners are published on the website for our customers and local authorities to view.

RESULT

New technology is becoming more affordable and this year we approved the first Ultra Low Emission Burner
(ULEB) which could be retrofitted to old open fireplaces. This year over 20 burners have been authorised.

Our consenting process and compliance programmes give effect to the Canterbury Air Regional Plan.
MEASURE

Compliance monitoring work programmes are implemented to deliver on national, regional and zone priorities.

TARGET

(Refer to target 36.2 in Regional Leadership)

RESULT

A new project looking at crowdsourcing information about chronic odour has been piloted in affected communities
in Christchurch. Work has been undertaken with quarries on new monitoring regimes. Local solutions are
underway for outdoor burning during the summer for affected communities.
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Regional Leadership
Maintaining effective relationships; providing evidence-based policy; supporting well-informed decision-makers and
community; and providing a robust, adaptive, and cost-effective regulatory process that underpins the sustainable
management of Canterbury’s natural resources
There are six programmes in this portfolio:
• Governance and engagement
• Strategy and direction
• Ngāi Tahu and regional relationships
• Long-term community planning
• Plans, consenting and compliance
• Our information and advice

Governance and engagement
In 2019 we completed a representation review, with the Local Government Commission confirming a 14 member Council to be elected
from seven constituencies. Preparations are well underway for the local body elections in October 2019 which will return Environment
Canterbury to a fully elected Council.
We invest in engagement tools and communication to keep information available to the community and to make participation in our
processes easy to access. We have developed an online engagement site and Council has supported a new youth initiative, the
Environment Canterbury Youth Rōpū, to support the engagement and participation of young people in local government.

Strategy and direction
Strategic leadership for the organisation and monitoring and reporting on progress is led through the Regional Leadership portfolio.
On 16 May 2019 Environment Canterbury was the first council in New Zealand to declare a climate emergency.

Ngāi Tahu and regional relationships
Our relationships with mana whenua, communities, government and local government agencies, businesses, industry sectors and
groups throughout Canterbury are central to our work and are overseen through the Regional Leadership portfolio.
Our special relationship with Ngāi Tahu involves regular hui with the region’s 10 Papatipu Rūnanga. Staff training, noho marae and
regular staff engagement with Papatipu Rūnanga members help make sure mana whenua values and considerations inform our
decision-making.
As a regional council, we have seen significant benefits from having Ngāi Tahu appointed Councillors at the Council table since 2010.
This year we progressed a Local Bill to secure these two Ngāi Tahu Councillor positions permanently on Council. Rino Tirikatene, MP
Southern Māori, sponsored the Bill in Parliament but it did not gain enough support to achieve a first reading.
In 2012 Environment Canterbury and Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu entered into the Te Waihora Co-Governance Agreement, providing
leadership for the restoration of the mauri of Te Waihora and its catchment. Selwyn District Council joined in 2014, Christchurch City
Council in 2016, and during June 2019 we formally welcomed the Department of Conservation to the Co-Governance Group.
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Through the Mayoral Forum and our regular interactions and visits to the territorial authorities in the region, we maintain connection
and understanding of the issues facing local government throughout Canterbury.
Strong and positive relationships exist with central government and providing policy advice to influence central government thinking
and direction is an essential part of our role. Over the past year, we have provided submissions and advice on freshwater management,
biodiversity, climate change, funding and financing, and transport.
Participation in the Mayoral Forum also contributes to the development of regional submissions, most recently on immigration policy
and employer-assisted work visas, and the proposed reform of vocational education.
Over the past two years, we have strengthened our presence in South Canterbury with the appointment of a South Canterbury Regional
Manager, and we have joined Waitaki and Mackenzie District Councils, the Department of Conservation and Land Information New
Zealand in a five-agency partnership to align our activities in the Mackenzie Basin.
We work in partnership with many community organisations across the region and we recently launched a new section on our website
to provide information to community groups about how we provide support.

Long-term and community planning
In June 2019 Council adopted our Annual Plan for 2019/20 and updated our Fees & Charges Policy and Revenue & Financing Policy.
There were no significant changes to the type of activity or strategic direction for the Council. The 10.5% rates increase includes a
large allocation (four percentage points) for public transport – three percentage points for implementation of Regional Public
Transport Plan initiatives consulted on last year, and one percentage point for the operational implications of the Employee Relations
Act, which fall mostly on public transport. The remainder of the increase is for freshwater management, biodiversity and biosecurity
and inflation.

Plans, consenting and compliance
As a regional council, we are responsible for the development, implementation and review of our Regional Policy Statement (RPS)
which identifies the resource management issues in Canterbury to be managed, and the objectives, policies and methods to achieve
integrated management of natural and physical resources. We have strong relationships with the planning sections of district and
city councils across the region and provide support to ensure district and city plans give effect to the RPS. In 2018/19 we have worked
closely with Selwyn District Council, Waimakariri District Council, Timaru District Council and Waitaki District Council on the revision
of their district plans, and with Kaikōura District Council on the natural hazards chapter of their district plan. We’ve also supported
Mackenzie District Council in their work on plan changes and helped the other councils where required.
To implement our regional plans we issue resource consents. There are more than 24,000 resource consents in Canterbury and,
consistent with the Ministry for the Environment’s Best Practice Guidelines, we take a prioritised and risk-management approach to
monitoring them. We carefully prioritise which consents our staff monitor by considering catchments that are most at risk and
activities that have the potential to cause the most damage. We use a range of monitoring technologies where we can, such as
telemetry for water use data, to enable us to monitor more within the resources we have available. We also respond to around 4,000
reported potential pollution incidents each year.

Our information and advice
We continue to work to improve our systems for governing, monitoring, managing and sharing data. We collect and share the state
of the environment monitoring data to track air quality; rainfall; the quality, levels and flows of the water in our rivers, streams and
lakes; river and stream ecosystem health; and the quality and levels of groundwater. We also track and report on water allocation,
consenting, water use and plan effectiveness and we are working with Papatipu Rūnanga on pilot programmes for the monitoring of
mātauranga Māori. Data collection and management informs all of our decision-making.
We host and manage the Canterbury Maps website, which provides free, interactive access to maps, records, information and data
from the local government councils in the Canterbury region.
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST LEVELS OF SERVICE TARGETS
Our citizens are engaged and enabled to play an active part in shaping our region's future.
MEASURE

Community understanding of the work of Environment Canterbury as well as related regional issues is increased.

TARGET

Conduct a benchmarking exercise to gauge the level of community understanding and report back to Council
(2018/19).

RESULT

A survey was carried out which indicated those areas of our work where community understanding could be
improved. Council discussed and subsequently developed an action plan, with targeted communications which
aimed to improve understanding of freshwater management – one of Environment Canterbury’s two strategic
priorities. Changes in attitudes, opinions and awareness will be assessed through the next survey.

MEASURE

A wide cross-section of the community's views will be heard by Council.

TARGET

Analyse demographic data and identify which sectors of the community are not well represented in engagement
with Council (2018/19).

RESULT

An analysis of demographic data was undertaken and, as a result, youth were identified as underrepresented in
engagement. This is being addressed with the establishment of the Environment Canterbury Youth Rōpū, along
with other initiatives. Environment Canterbury has also identified some parts of the region which are
underrepresented in engagement with Council and will be working to address this over the coming year.

Environment Canterbury has clearly articulated a strategic direction and priorities for the organisation.
MEASURE

Percentage of Levels of Service targets achieved across all portfolios.

TARGET

At least 95% of the Levels of Service targets included in the 2018-28 LTP achieved each year.

RESULT

95.8% of the levels of service targets were achieved in 2018/19.
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Environment Canterbury's work and regional leadership is grounded in enduring relationships and collaborative agreements.
MEASURE

Environment Canterbury - Ngāi Tahu governance and working group forums are held regularly to advance an
agreed Tuia work programme.

TARGET

Governance meetings are held quarterly, and working group forums are held every two months. Work plans are
in place and reviewed annually.

RESULT

Te Rōpū Tuia, the meetings between the Chairs of the Papatipu Rūnanga and Council, have been held quarterly
and working group forums, Te Paiherenga and the CWMS Rūnanga representatives' forums, have met at least
every two months throughout the year. The Tuia work plan (our overarching activity) has been reviewed and
activities are reported regularly to Council.

MEASURE

Protocols, including Te Waihora co-governance protocols, are established.

TARGET

Two Tuia Operational Protocols are in place (2018/19), with others in development.

RESULT

In 2018/19 Environment Canterbury put in place Tuia operational protocols covering work on the Tuia Fund and
engagement work between river engineering and ngā Rūnanga. Environment Canterbury is also working to
document agreed protocols and practices in a number of other operational areas.

MEASURE

Relationships with key stakeholders are managed and maintained to achieve strategic objectives/community
outcomes.

TARGET

Systems for stakeholder relationship management are reviewed and key relationships mapped (2018/19).

RESULT

Systems have been reviewed and a mapping exercise was undertaken for some of the key relationships and a
template for gathering information for further reviews has been established and trialled, with a stakeholder
management and engagement framework in development. The list of Relationship Coordinators have been
appointed to help external stakeholders access the right people in Environment Canterbury.

MEASURE

Regional forums are supported by Environment Canterbury and enabled to achieve their agreed objectives.

TARGET

Environment Canterbury provides secretariat support for the five regional forums.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury has provided secretariat support to the regional forums and ongoing implementation
of the Canterbury Regional Economic Development Strategy (CREDS). Staff have also supported preparation of
regional and Mayoral Forum advocacy to central government and other key stakeholders on matters of concern
to the region.

Our Long-Term Plan, Annual Plans and Annual Reports provide evidence of sound business planning.
MEASURE

Our Long-Term Plan, Annual Plans and Annual Reports are completed within statutory time frames.

TARGET

All Local Government Act statutory planning requirements and financial reporting standards are met

RESULT

The 2017/18 Annual Report was adopted on 18 October 2018, within the statutory timeframe of within 4 months
of 30 June 2018. The 2018/19 Annual Plan was adopted on 20 June 2019, within the statutory timeframe of before
1 July 2019.

TARGET

Unmodified independent audit report for Long-Term Plan, including any significant changes in subsequent years,
and Annual Reports.

RESULT

The 2017/18 Annual Report was adopted on 18 October 2018 with an unmodified independent audit report.
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Environment Canterbury works collaboratively with the region's district and city councils in the review of their district
plans.
MEASURE

District and City plans are supported by Environment Canterbury so that these plans give effect to regional
policies.

TARGET

Planning support is provided by Environment Canterbury for each of the ten Canterbury Territorial Authorities
every year.

RESULT

Planning support has been provided to each of the ten district/city councils in Canterbury to assist with giving
effect to the Regional Policy Statement.

Environment Canterbury delivers customer-centric regulatory services to our community.
MEASURE

Pre-application advice results in improved quality of resource consent applications lodged, thereby reducing the
need to return applications as incomplete under s88 of the RMA.

TARGET

For each year, for similar types of application, the proportion which require more information under s88 of the
RMA is lower where pre-application advice has been provided.

RESULT

Receiving pre-application advice was found to significantly increase the probability of meeting the s88
requirements, particularly for more complex applications. If an application does not meet the s88 requirements
it is returned to the applicant as incomplete and it must then be re-lodged.

MEASURE

Compliance monitoring work programmes are implemented to deliver on national, regional and zone priorities.

TARGET

Publish an annual report of compliance monitoring, incident response and enforcement activity on our website.

RESULT

The annual report for compliance monitoring is published on Environment Canterbury’s website and shows the
types of consents monitored, what was found and the response. The annual incident report, also on the website,
shows the incidents that were reported, what was found on investigation, and the action taken as a result.
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Communities and decision-makers have easy access to relevant, timely, and accurate data and information.
MEASURE

State of the Environment reporting information is updated and published throughout the year on four environmental
domains: air, coastal, biodiversity/ecosystem health, and water.

TARGET

Data and information which report on the state of Canterbury's environment is accessible through the Environment
Canterbury website Reporting Back section.

RESULT

The Environment Canterbury website makes environmental monitoring data and information accessible to the
public, including quick access to the frequently requested monitoring data for rainfall, river flows, air quality,
and coastal wave data. ‘Reporting back’ web pages include environmental reporting for air quality, freshwater
management, biodiversity and biosecurity. Links from the Environment Canterbury website, including from
'Reporting back', go to other environmental reporting data and information for Canterbury water management
zones.
State of the environment reporting for the Canterbury region is now published through Land Air Water Aotearoa
(LAWA) www.lawa.org.nz.

TARGET

State of the Environment reporting is published in accordance with Ministry for the Environment frameworks.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury data was made available and used in Ministry for the Environment 2018-19 national
state of the environment reports.
Environment Canterbury reporting, including on LAWA, uses the internationally (and MfE/Statistics NZ) agreed
Driving Forces-Pressure-State-Impact-Response framework with scientifically agreed indicators and monitoring
and reporting standards.

MEASURE

Council has established a process for reporting mātauranga Māori alongside state of the environment reporting.

TARGET

Agree tools and methodology with Papatipu Rūnanga and conduct pilot monitoring (2018/19).

RESULT

Tools and methodology have been agreed for pilot projects in the Selwyn Waihora catchment and also in South
Canterbury. The Whakaora Te Ahuriri project to develop a constructed wetland adjacent to the Huritini/Halswell
River has provided an opportunity to carry out mātauranga Māori monitoring with the involvement of the Papatipu
Rūnanga.

The Environment Canterbury Customer Services team provide access to data, information and advice.
MEASURE

Customer Service interactions provide the right information, first time to our customers.

TARGET

95% or more of sampled customer service interactions, on average over each year, meet our service standards.

RESULT

In 2018/19 the Customer Services Team responded to over 60,000 phone and email contacts. A sample of these
interactions are evaluated each month and of those evaluated the average quality evaluation score attained was
95.5% which meets the service standards. The most common queries are about air quality, consents, and plans
rules, along with requests for property information.

33

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the readers of Canterbury Regional Council’s annual report
for the year ended 30 June 2019
The Auditor-General is the auditor of Canterbury Regional Council (the Regional Council). The
Auditor-General has appointed me, Julian Tan, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to
report on the information in the Regional Council’s annual report that we are required to audit under
the Local Government Act 2002 (the Act). We refer to this information as “the audited information”
in our report.
We are also required to report on:


whether the Regional Council has complied with the requirements of Schedule 10 of the Act
that apply to the annual report; and



the completeness and accuracy of the Regional Council’s disclosures about its performance
against benchmarks that are required by the Local Government (Financial Reporting and
Prudence) Regulations 2014.

We refer to this information as “the disclosure requirements” in our report.
We completed our work on 19 September 2019. This is the date on which we give our report.

Opinion on the audited information
In our opinion:


the financial statements on pages 42 to 69:


present fairly, in all material respects:
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the Regional Council’s financial position as at 30 June 2019;
the results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended on that
date; and

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance
with Public Benefit Entity Reporting Standards; and



the funding impact statement on page 83 to 90, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
amount of funds produced from each source of funding and how the funds were applied as
compared to the information included in the Regional Council’s long-term plan;



the statement of portfolio performance on pages 3 to 33:



presents fairly, in all material respects, the Regional Council’s levels of service for
each group of activities for the year ended 30 June 2019, including:






the levels of service achieved compared with the intended levels of
service and whether any intended changes to levels of service were
achieved;
the reasons for any significant variation between the levels of service
achieved and the intended levels of service; and

complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and



the statement about capital expenditure for each group of activities on pages 84 to 90,
presents fairly, in all material respects, actual capital expenditure as compared to the
budgeted capital expenditure included in the Regional Council’s long-term plan; and



the funding impact statement for each group of on pages 84 to 90, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the amount of funds produced from each source of funding and how the
funds were applied as compared to the information included in the Regional Council’s longterm plan.

Report on the disclosure requirements
We report that the Regional Council has:


complied with the requirements of Schedule 10 of the Act that apply to the annual report;
and



made the disclosures about performance against benchmarks as required by the Local
Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014 on pages 70 to 77, which
represent a complete list of required disclosures and accurately reflects the information
drawn from the Regional Council’s audited information and, where applicable, the Regional
Council’s long-term plan and annual plans.

Basis for our opinion on the audited information
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing
(New Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. We describe our
responsibilities under those standards further in the “Responsibilities of the auditor for the audited
information” section of this report.
We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the audited information.
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Responsibilities of the Council for the audited information
The Council is responsible for meeting all legal requirements that apply to its annual report.
The Council’s responsibilities arise under the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local Government
(Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014.
The Council is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to
prepare the information we audit that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the information we audit the Council is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as
a going concern. The Council is also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless there is an intention to amalgamate
or cease all of the functions of the Regional Council or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audited information
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the audited information, as a
whole, is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit
report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in
accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures,
and can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the
basis of this audited information.
For the budget information reported in the audited information, our procedures were limited to
checking that the budget information agreed to the Regional Council’s long-term plan.
We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited
information.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also:
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We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the audited information,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Regional Council’s internal control.



We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Council.



We determine the appropriateness of the reported intended levels of service in the
Statement of Portfolio Performance as a reasonable basis for assessing the levels of service
achieved and reported by the Regional Council.



We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by
the Council and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast a significant doubt on the Regional
Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the related disclosures in
the audited information or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Regional Council to cease to continue
as a going concern.



We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the audited information,
including the disclosures, and whether the audited information represents, where
applicable, the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Other Information
The Council is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the information included on pages 1 to 2, 34 to 41, 78 to 82, and 91 but does
not include the audited information and the disclosure requirements.
Our opinion on the audited information and our report on the disclosure requirements do not cover
the other information.
Our responsibility is to read the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the audited information and the disclosure requirements,
or our knowledge obtained during our work, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Independence
We are independent of the Regional Council in accordance with the independence requirements of
the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of
Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised): Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by
the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.
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In addition to our audit of the audited information and our report on the disclosure requirements,
we have completed agreed-upon procedure engagements and reported on the Regional Council’s
annual reporting certificate to the debenture trustee. Other than the audit and these engagements,
we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Regional Council.

Julian Tan
Audit New Zealand
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Christchurch, New Zealand
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Financial commentary
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Council of Environment Canterbury confirms that all statutory requirements in relation to the Annual Report, as outlined in the
Local Government Act 2002, have been complied with. The Council and management of Environment Canterbury accept responsibility
for the preparation of the annual financial statements and the judgements used in them, and for maintaining a system of internal
control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial and service performance reporting.
In the opinion of Council and management of Environment Canterbury, the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2019 fairly reflect the financial position and results of operations and service performance achievements of Environment Canterbury.
Steve Lowndes

Bill Bayfield

Chairman

Chief Executive

19 September 2019

OVERVIEW
We are pleased to report that Environment Canterbury performed well against the 2018-28 Long Term Plan (LTP) targets and budgets.
The operating surplus before tax of $4.5 million includes a revaluation gain of $5.5 million, in our operating portfolios we had a deficit
of $1 million compared to a budgeted deficit of $1.52 million which results in a lower than planned use of reserves held for specific
purposes.
The significant differences to our operating budget related to reduced spend in our Air portfolio on our winter campaigns in some
districts, and delays in Environmental infrastructure projects and Public Transport projects.

EXPENDITURE
Environment Canterbury aims to operate a balanced budget, where operating expenditure is covered by operating revenue. Operating
expenditure is based on levels of service agreed with the community as part of the Long-Term Plan 2018-28. Expenditure budgets
are set based on the expected cost to deliver these agreed levels of service to the community.
In 2018/19 Environment Canterbury spent $176.6 million delivering these services. Further details on portfolio levels of service and
expenditure are provided in the portfolio performance section from page 4.
Our largest area of expenditure is the provision of public passenger transport (Metro) to Christchurch and Timaru. We also continue
to invest in delivering on our strategic priorities including:
• Freshwater Management - to improve water quality in Canterbury and ensure the greatest environmental, social, economic and
cultural benefits.
• Indigenous biodiversity - programmes and projects to protect, value and enhance habitat and ecosystems.
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SOURCES OF INCOME
Where possible, expenditure is fully or partially funded by those who directly benefit from that expenditure through user pays (such
as bus fares for those using the Metro bus service) or if a project has national benefits through central government grants. Expenditure
not funded by grants and user pays income, is funded through general rates, targeted rates or use of reserves.
In 2018/19 Environment Canterbury received $181 million from the following sources:
• Fees, charges and other revenue – 24% of income (2018: 23%)
• Subsidies and grants – 19% of income (2018: 20%)
• General rates – 35% of income (2018: 19%)
• Targeted rates – 22% of income (2018: 38%)
For every $100,000 of capital value, the owner of a property in the Canterbury region paid an average of $35.22 in general rates to
Environment Canterbury. So for a property with a rateable value of $500,000 we would have collected $176.08 in general rates.
Environment Canterbury collects general rates for activities which benefit the region as a whole. A summary of rating statistics over
time is detailed in the table below:
ENVIRONMENT CANTERBURY FINANCIAL STATISTICS

Proportion of rates to total income (%)
General rate per $100,000 capital value ($) GST included
Total public debt as a percentage of total assets

2019
57%
$35.22
3.18%

2018
57%
$17.47
3.11%

2017
57%
$18.57
2.61%

2016
59%
$18.66
2.17%

2015
52%
$21.53
0.20%

As set out in the Long-Term Plan 2018-28, from the 2018/19 financial year the targeted Canterbury Water Management Strategy rate
switched to a general rate. This has no effect on individual ratepayers.

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense comprises the Surplus/Deficit after taxation plus Other Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense. Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expense includes items not recognised in the financial surplus, such as revaluation of
assets. Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense provides an all-inclusive view of Environment Canterbury’s changes in equity.
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for 2018/19 was a surplus $40.1 million. This surplus includes the effect of the revaluation
of land and buildings - $35.6 million in other comprehensive revenue and expense, and $5.5 million included in other gains (revenue)
- a total of $41.1 million. The valuation was undertaken by Quotable Value New Zealand, and is carried out every three years.
The surplus after taxation is $4.5 million. This is the difference between our Revenue and Expenditure for the 2018/19 financial year.
These funds form part of the closing reserve balance.

ASSETS
Environment Canterbury manages $968 million of long-term assets and $39 million of current assets. Flood protection works, which
are valued at $518 million, remain our most significant asset. Environment Canterbury also has a significant amount of restricted land
reserves totalling $346 million. Many of these reserves are in or near floodplains and include the beds of the Ashley, Rakaia and
Waimakariri rivers, vested in Environment Canterbury for the purposes of managing flood protection for the region. For more detail
on Environment Canterbury’s assets, refer to note 10 of the financial statements.
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CASH & INVESTMENTS
With $11.7 million cash and $5m of investments at balance date, Environment Canterbury manages these balances closely during the
year via the Performance Audit and Risk Committee (PARC). ECan has a Liability Management and Investment Policy which provides
guidance as to the level and types of investments the Council wants to maintain. External treasury advice is also utilised to monitor
the policy levels.

BORROWINGS
With total borrowings of $38 million, public debt per capita equates to approximately $61 for every person in Canterbury. External
debt is used to fund projects where there is a long-term benefit which would otherwise have to be funded by the current generation
of ratepayers. Where possible and prudent, Environment Canterbury will fund internally from reserves before borrowing externally.
As a public body, Environment Canterbury has access to low cost borrowing, which we have taken advantage of with $38 million
borrowed from the NZ Local Government Funding Agency (LGFA) in order to maintain our cash reserves in line with policy.
At the end of the 2018/19 financial year, total liabilities are $60 million, this is $2.6 million higher than the prior year and is a result
of lower current liabilities offset by higher borrowings.
Environment Canterbury’s financial strategy sets limits around debt and interest rate levels along with performance targets for
investments. The financial strategy is outlined in Environment Canterbury’s Long-Term Plan 2018-28. The aim is to achieve efficient
and effective regional governance by prudently managing finances in a manner that protects the public’s investment and minimises
the exposure to risk. Environment Canterbury has complied with its financial strategy in 2018/19.

EQUITY – YOUR INVESTMENT IN ENVIRONMENT CANTERBURY
The equity figure of $947 million in the statement of financial position represents the net assets of Environment Canterbury.
Equity is further classified into various reserves, representing funds collected with a specific purpose–see note 15 for full details of
Environment Canterbury’s reserves. Reserves that are held for specific purposes help to smooth costs in those activities over time.
Equity has increased this year by $40 million due to the land and buildings revaluation.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The financial information contained in this Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP) and present fairly, in all material aspects the activities of Environment Canterbury during the year
and its financial position at the end of the year.
KATHERINE HARBROW
Chief Financial Officer, B.Com CA
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Financial statements
Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense for the year ended 30 June 2019
Note
Revenue
General rates
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants
Fees and charges
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Other gains
Total operating revenue
Expenditure
Personnel costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Other expenses
Total operating expenditure
Surplus/(deficit) before tax
Tax (expense)/benefit net of loss offset
Surplus/(deficit) after tax
Other comprehensive revenue and expense
Financial assets at fair value
Revaluation of assets
Total other comprehensive revenue and expense
Total comprehensive revenue and expense

Actual
2018/19
$000

2
2
3

3
1
4
4
4
1,4
5

15
10,11

Long-Term Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2017/18
$000

63,136
39,295
34,897
34,570
460
2,797
5,891
181,046

61,720
38,074
34,430
35,581
743
251
170,798

33,139
64,485
33,334
33,521
750
3,982
2,095
171,305

49,206
5,890
1,148
120,345
176,589
4,457
9
4,466

50,834
6,743
1,296
113,645
172,519
(1,721)
(1,721)

46,487
6,327
1,145
118,689
172,648
(1,343)
(12)
(1,355)

32
35,592
35,624
40,090

(1,721)

64
949
1,014
(342)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES AGAINST BUDGET
Additional rates of $2.6 million were received due to an increase in the capital value of the rating base and the Order in Council which
allows part year charging and collection of rates revenue. As set out in the Long-Term Plan 2018-28, from the 2018/19 financial year
the targeted Canterbury Water Management Strategy rate switched to a general rate; this has no effect on individual ratepayers.
Subsidies and grants are greater than budget with a number of small variances making up this number but the Kaikoura Earthquake
Waste project ($500,000) was the biggest contributor. Fees and charges are lower than budget due largely to lower Consent
application and monitoring fees. Other gains are made up of the revaluation of the Tuam Street building which is a reversal of the
impairment of the asset in 2016. A revaluation of land and buildings was undertaken this financial year by Quotable Value New
Zealand which resulted in an increase of $35.5 million to these assets. The revaluation of land and buildings is completed every three
years. Overall the net effect of revenue variances is total operating revenue $4.4 million, 2.6% higher than originally expected
(excluding Other gains).
Expenditure for the year is $4.1m, 2.4% higher than budget primarily due to key portfolio projects such as the Kaikoura Earthquake
Waste project, the Canterbury Regional Economic Development Strategy, and Public Transport.
The Council does not receive any income from development and financial contributions.
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Statement of changes in net assets/equity for the year ended 30 June 2019
Note
Balance as at 1 July
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year
Balance at 30 June

15

Actual
Long-Term Plan
2018/19
2018/19
$000
$000
907,280
910,761
40,090
(1,721)
947,370
909,041

Actual
2017/18
$000
907,623
(342)
907,280

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019
Note
Current Assets
Cash
Investments
Receivables and accruals
Current portion of clean heat and healthier homes loans
Inventories
Land and buildings held for sale
Total current assets
Non current assets
Investments (other financial assets)
Receivables and accruals
Non current portion of clean heat and healthier homes loans
Tax asset
Property plant & equipment
Intangible assets
Total non current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals
Employee entitlements
Current portion of lease liabilities
Current portion of loans
Tax liability
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Non current portion of lease liabilities
Borrowings and other financial liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity

Actual
2018/19
$000

Long-Term Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2017/18
$000

11,704
5,000
21,610
383
284
131
39,111

6,275
10,000
15,340
700
765
33,080

13,319
10,000
19,137
449
364
43,269

6
7
8
5
10
11

1,110
461
623
956,578
9,636
968,407
1,007,518

889
319
1,860
924,982
8,043
936,093
969,174

1,046
436
586
910,708
8,700
921,475
964,745

12
13
14
14
5

17,298
3,706
396
6,000
27,400

18,290
3,265
153
250
21,958

21,938
4,808
283
10
27,039

14
14

749
32,000
32,749
60,148
947,370
947,370

306
37,869
38,175
60,133
909,041
909,041

425
30,000
30,425
57,464
907,280
907,280

6
7
8
9
10

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 30 June 2019
Note
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash provided from:
Rates
Grants
Interest received
Recoveries/miscellaneous income
Cash applied to:

Payment of interest on loans
Payments to suppliers and employees
Goods and services tax (net)

Net cash flow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash provided from:
Insurance proceeds for fixed assets
Sale of fixed assets
Sale of assets held for sale
Clean heat loans repaid
Cash applied to:

Purchase of fixed and intangible assets
Purchase of investments
Healthier Homes loans advanced

Net cash flow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash provided from:
Loans raised
Cash applied to:

Repayment of principal on loans
Clean heat finance repaid

Net cash flow from financing activities
Movement in cash
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Add cash bought forward
Cash carried forward
Made up of:
Cash and bank

16

Actual
2018/19
$000

Long-Term Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2017/18
$000

99,834
34,081
412
42,608
176,935
(1,148)
(173,518)
502
(174,163)
2,772

99,615
34,013
370
35,116
169,114
(1,296)
(164,396)
(165,692)
3,422

97,579
31,120
668
37,809
167,176
(1,145)
(163,248)
(864)
(165,257)
1,919

48
(131)
525
442
(17,411)
5,031
(449)
(12,829)
(12,387)

4,128
498
4,626
(18,988)
10,000
(2,001)
(10,989)
(6,362)

2,001
1,292
686
3,979
(10,316)
3,064
(7,252)
(3,273)

8,000
8,000
8,000
(1,615)
13,319
11,704
11,704

8,469
8,469
(4,730)
(4,730)
3,739
799
5,477
6,275
6,275

5,000
5,000
5,000
3,648
9,670
13,319
13,319

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
The GST (net) component of operating activities reflects the net of GST paid to and received from the IRD. The GST (net) component
is shown on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful information for financial statement purposes.
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Statement of accounting policies
REPORTING ENTITY
Environment Canterbury is a regional local authority governed by the Local Government Act 2002; it is domiciled and operates in
New Zealand.
Environment Canterbury has designated itself as a Public Benefit Entity for financial reporting purposes. The primary objective of a
Public Benefit Entity is to provide goods and services for regional or social benefit, rather than for making a financial return.
Environment Canterbury’s principal activity is the provision of local authority services, including: air quality, biodiversity and
biosecurity, freshwater management, coastal environment, consents and compliance, emergency management, flood protection
and control, land, natural hazards, navigation safety, public passenger and regional transport, regional leadership, and waste,
hazardous substances and contaminated sites.
We work with people all over Canterbury to manage the region’s water, land and air, and to deliver public transport.
The financial statements of Environment Canterbury are for the year ended 30 June 2019. Council authorised the financial statements
for issue on 19 September 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, and the accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the period.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of Environment Canterbury have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Act 2002, which includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP).
The financial statements comply with Public Benefit Entity International Public Sector Accounting Standards (PBE IPSAS) and have
been prepared in accordance with Tier 1 Public Benefit Entity accounting standards.
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000).

MEASUREMENT BASE
The financial statements are prepared using a measurement base of historical cost modified by the revaluation of certain assets as
set out in the specific accounting policies below.

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies, which materially affect the measurement of results and financial position, have been applied:

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. The recognition criteria for specific revenue items is
described below:
• Rates revenue is recognised when levied. General rates and targeted rates are non-exchange transactions.
• Grants are recognised when any conditions are complied with. Grants are non-exchange transactions.
• New Zealand Transport Agency passenger services subsidies are recognised upon entitlement. These subsidies and grants are
non-exchange transactions.
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• Interest revenue is measured at amortised cost and recognised using the effective interest method. Interest is an exchange
transaction.

Taxation
Environment Canterbury is a public authority and consequently is exempt from the payment of income tax.

Goods and Services Tax
The financial statements have been prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of receivables and payables, which are stated with
GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the IRD is included as part of receivables or payables in the
statement of financial position.
The net amount of GST paid to or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified
as a net operating cashflow in the statement of cashflows. Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
Environment Canterbury’s financial assets include: cash, receivables, accruals, and investments.
Environment Canterbury’s financial liabilities include: payables and borrowings.

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

Receivables
Receivables may include both current and long-term amounts due and are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.
Clean Heat loans ceased to be issued after 2012 and were issued with a nil interest rate. After initial recognition, the Clean Heat
loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains or losses on impairment of the asset are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense.
Healthier Homes loans were first issued on 1 July 2019 and are issued with an interest rate of 5.9%. After initial recognition, the
Healthier Homes loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains or losses on impairment of
the asset are recognised in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense.
A provision for impairment is established when there is evidence that Environment Canterbury will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the amounts expected to be collected.

Investments
Investments include cash and fixed income investments in bank and are initially measured at the amount invested. After initial
recognition, investments in bank deposits are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision
for impairment.
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Inventories
Inventories (such as spare parts and other items) held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not supplied
on a commercial basis are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of operational assets, infrastructural assets, and restricted assets.
(a) Operational assets - These include land, buildings, computer equipment, plant and equipment, motor vehicles and furniture and
fittings.
(b) Infrastructural assets - Infrastructural assets consist of flood protection and control works (i.e. river control works and land
drainage schemes), forests (which are planted with the primary objective of river and erosion control) and wells.
(c) Restricted assets - Restricted assets are reserves owned by Environment Canterbury that provide a benefit or service to the
community, which cannot be disposed of because of legal or other restrictions. Environment Canterbury receives lease rental revenue
from its reserve land under leases granted to third parties. Environment Canterbury classifies all of its reserve land as property,
plant and equipment.
Land (operational and restricted) is measured at fair value, and buildings and infrastructural assets are measured at fair value less
accumulated depreciation. All other asset classes are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Additions and other subsequent costs
The initial or subsequent cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset only if it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Environment Canterbury and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired
in a non-exchange transaction for nil or for a nominal consideration, the asset is initially recognised at fair value.
Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.

Disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains and losses
on disposals are included net in the surplus or deficit. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in asset revaluation
reserves, in respect of those assets, are transferred to retained earnings.

Revaluation
Asset classes that are revalued, are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amount does not differ materially
from fair value. The valuation cycle for revalued asset classes is normally three years.
Environment Canterbury accounts for revaluations of property, plant and equipment on a class-of-asset basis. The results of revaluing
are credited or debited to other comprehensive revenue and expense and are accumulated to an asset revaluation reserve for that
class of asset. Where this results in a debit balance in the asset revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in other
comprehensive revenue and expense, but in the surplus or deficit. Any subsequent increase on revaluation that offsets a previous
decrease in value recognised in the surplus or deficit will be recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously
expensed, and then in other comprehensive revenue and expense.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis at rates which will write-off the cost or valuation of the assets to their estimated
residual values over their useful lives.
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Land and forests are not depreciated. Depreciation is also not provided for components of river control works and land drainage
schemes (excludes culverts, floodgates, tracks and fences). An asset management plan has been prepared for these schemes and,
in the absence of significant flood events, they are not considered to deteriorate. Environment Canterbury expenses. as maintenance,
all repairs, and capitalises additions which increase the service potential of the assets.
The useful lives, residual value and associated depreciation rates of Environment Canterbury’s assets have been estimated as follows:
ENVIRONMENT CANTERBURY’S ASSETS' ESTIMATED USEFUL LIFE
Asset Category
Fixed assets:
Buildings: structure
Buildings: fit-out
Motor vehicles
Furniture & fittings
Computer equipment
Plant & equipment
Infrastructural assets:
Culverts & floodgates
Tracks & fences
Wells

Estimated useful life (years)

Residual value (%) % of cost depreciated annually

5-100
5-20
3-10
10
4-7
4-10

1
1
22-40
1
1
1-30

1-20
5-20
6-20
10
14-25
8-20

25-80
50-75
33

-

1.25-4
1.33-2
3

Intangible assets
Environment Canterbury’s intangible assets are primarily the costs associated with acquiring software. Acquired software licenses
are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to bring into use the specific software.
The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Amortisation begins
when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised.
The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated in the table below:
ENVIRONMENT CANTERBURY’S INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Asset Category
Computer software

Estimated useful life (years)
3-8

Residual value (%)
33

% of cost depreciated annually
8-22

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Emission Trading Scheme units have an indefinite life as they are not being amortised.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value, less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is determined using
depreciated replacement cost.
If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is written down to the
recoverable amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the surplus or deficit.
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Leases
Finance leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Assets acquired by way of
finance lease are stated initially at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, and are depreciated over
the period that Environment Canterbury is expected to benefit from their use.

Operating lease
An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Payments are
representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and, accordingly, are charged to the surplus or deficit in the
periods of expected benefit.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Accounts payable
Short-term payables are recorded at their face value.

Employee entitlements
Annual, sick, long service and retirement leave and time-in-lieu entitlements estimated to be payable to employees are accounted
for on the basis of statutory and contractual requirements as employees become entitled to them.
Liability for sick leave is measured as the amount of unused entitlement accumulated at balance date that the Council anticipates
employees will use in future periods in excess of the days to which they are entitled.

Provisions
Environment Canterbury recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present obligation
(either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that expenditure will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense and is included in 'finance costs'.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value plus transaction costs. After initial recognition, all borrowings are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after balance date.

Equity
Equity is the community’s interest in Environment Canterbury and is measured as the difference between total assets and total
liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into: retained earnings, restricted reserves and asset revaluation reserves.
Reserves may be legally restricted or created by Environment Canterbury. Legally restricted reserves are those subject to specific
conditions accepted as binding by Environment Canterbury and which may not be revised by Environment Canterbury without
reference to the Court or a third party. Transfers from these reserves may be made only for certain specified purposes or when
certain specified conditions are met. Created restricted reserves are reserves restricted by Council decision. The Council may alter
them without reference to any third party or the Courts. Transfers to and from these reserves are at the discretion of the Council.
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Budget figures
The budget figures in the financial statements are those approved by Environment Canterbury as part of the annual planning process.
The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP and are consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the
Council for the preparation of these financial statements.

Cost allocation
The Council has derived the cost of service for each significant activity of the Council using the cost allocation outlined below.
Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a significant activity. Indirect costs are those costs which cannot be identified
in an economically feasible manner, with a specific significant activity.
Direct costs are charged directly to Operating Portfolio activities. Indirect costs (Corporate and Overhead) are charged to Corporate
Portfolio activities and are reallocated using appropriate cost drivers, such as staff numbers and devices.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The financial statements are prepared using estimates and assumptions concerning the future and may differ from the subsequent
actual results.
Estimates and assumptions are continually reviewed and are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
There are no estimates or assumptions that are likely to have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, the most critical estimations in this regard being depreciation and
the useful life of assets.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Management has exercised the following critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

Grants received
Environment Canterbury must exercise judgement when recognising grant revenue to determine if conditions of the grant contract
have been satisfied. This judgement will be based on the facts and circumstances that are evident for each grant contract.

Standards issued and not yet effective, and not early adopted
Standards and amendments, issued but not yet effective that have not been early adopted, and which may be relevant to the Council
are:
. Interests in other entities (PBE IPSAS 34-38), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
. Impairment of revalued assets (PBE IPSAS 21 & 26), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.
. The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates (PBE IPSAS 4), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.
. Borrowing costs (PBE IPSAS 5), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
. Cash Flow Statements (PBE IPSAS 2), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
. Financial Instruments (PBE IFRS 9), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
. Service performance reporting (PBE FRS 48), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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The Council has not yet assessed the effects of these new standards.
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Notes to the financial statements
Note 1: Portfolio summary ($000's)
Actual
2018/19
$000

Revenue
Air Quality
Biodiversity and Biosecurity
Freshwater Management
Hazards, Risks and Resilience
Regional Leadership
Transport and Urban Development
Total activity revenue
Other revenue
Total revenue
Expenditure
Air Quality
Biodiversity and Biosecurity
Freshwater Management
Hazards, Risk and Resilience
Regional Leadership
Transport and Urban Development
Total activity expenditure
Add/(deduct)other expenditure adjustments
Total expenditure
Surplus/(deficit) before taxation
Tax expense net of tax loss offset
Surplus/(deficit) after taxation

3,533
10,608
29,647
28,187
27,889
74,907
174,771
6,276
181,046
Actual
2018/19
$000
3,504
10,086
31,703
26,958
29,067
74,441
175,758
831
176,589
4,457
9
4,466

Long-Term Plan
2018/19
$000
3,475
9,763
30,289
27,013
25,725
74,531
170,798
170,798

Actual
2017/18
$000

Long-Term Plan
2018/19
$000
3,954
9,742
31,393
25,669
27,902
73,674
172,333
185
172,519
(1,721)
(1,721)

Actual
2017/18
$000

3,771
11,773
25,758
31,229
27,809
70,721
171,060
244
171,305

4,503
13,473
26,797
27,221
29,617
71,263
172,874
(226)
172,648
(1,344)
(12)
(1,356)

Note 2: Rates ($000’s)
The Council is required by the Local Government Funding Agency (LGFA) Guarantee and Indemnity Deed to disclose in its financial
statements (or notes) its annual rates income. That Deed defines annual rates income as an amount equal to the total revenue from
any funding mechanism authorised by the Local Government (Rating Act) 2002 together with any revenue received by the Council
from other local authorities for services provided by that Council for which those other local authorities rate. The annual rates income
of the Council for the year ended 30 June 2019 for the purposes of the LGFA Guarantee and Indemnity Deed disclosure is shown
below:
Rates on properties owned by Environment Canterbury totalling $390,521 (2018 $358,157) have not been eliminated from revenue
and expenditure.
Rates remissions: Revenue from rates is shown net of rates remissions. The Council remits rates in accordance with its rates remission
policies. Rates remission is provided for the following categories of rating units or under the following circumstances:
- Remission of rates for community, sporting and other organisations
- Remission of rates on land protected for natural, historical or cultural conservation purposes
- Remission of rates for other purposes
- Remission of penalties
The total rates remitted during the year to 30 June 2019 totalled $393,822 (2018 $393,278).
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Non-rateable land: Under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 some properties are non-rateable, such as schools, churches
and public gardens. This land is non-rateable in respect of general rates but, where applicable is rateable in respect of targeted
rates. Non-rateable land does not constitute a remission under the Council’s rates remission policies.
Revenue from rates

2018/19
$000

General rates
Targeted rates:
Works rating districts
Air quality
Catchment works
Clean heat
Civil defence
Pest rating districts
Passenger transport
Regional park
Canterbury water management strategy water study
Total targeted rates
Total rates

2017/18
$000
63,136

33,139

6,175
2,049
1,361
40
2,327
2,067
24,130
1,145
39,295
102,431

7,228
2,059
1,635
209
2,082
1,455
22,279
1,138
26,400
64,485
97,624

Note 3: Subsidies, grants and other gains ($000’s)
2018/19
$000
29,610
2,243
226
843
849
33,771
1,126
34,897

Grant revenue
New Zealand Transport Agency
Ministry for the Environment
Ministry of Civil Defence and Emergency Management
Ministry for Primary Industries
Other government grants
Total government grants
Grants from non-government agencies
Total grant revenue
Other gains/(losses)

2018/19
$000

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on revaluation (reversal of previous revaluation loss)
Total gains/(losses)

2017/18
$000
27,652
1,367
11
3,542
32,572
763
33,334
2017/18
$000

366
5,525
5,891

2,095
2,095

Note 4: Expenditure ($000's)
Significant activities
Loss on sale of assets
Inventories movement
Employee benefits
Rental expense on operating leases

2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000
705
265
49,206
845

1,124
295
46,487
523
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2018/19
$000
Auditors' Remuneration
Fees to Audit New Zealand for audit of financial statements
Fees to Audit New Zealand for other services
Fees to other assurance providers for other audit services
Cost of credit
Bad debts written off
Interest expense
Movement in doubtful debts provision
Governance fees
Councillors fees
Depreciation and amortisation expense by portfolio

2017/18
$000
116
15
-

114
5
80

34
1,148
16

15
1,145
(55)

1,089

1,149

2018/19
$000

Air Quality
Biodiversity and Biosecurity
Freshwater Management
Hazards, Risk and Resilience
Transport and Urban Development
Regional Leadership
Total directly attributable depreciation and amortisation by portfolio
Other depreciation and amortisation
Total depreciation and amortisation expense

2017/18
$000
162
1
549
497
348
288
1,845
4,046
5,890

157
16
498
513
685
253
2,122
4,205
6,327

1 A provision for impairment of receivables is created when there is evidence that amounts due are unlikely to be collected.
2 Further detail on councillor remuneration is provided as part of the key personnel disclosures in Note 19 Related Party Transactions.
3 There were four severance payments made this year (three in 2018) totalling $33,896 (2018 $51,000), the value of each of the
payments was $12,813, $6,800, $3,436 and $10,847 (2018 $15,000, $15,000 and $75,123).

Note 5: Taxation ($000’s)
Environment Canterbury is no longer subject to income tax on revenue derived from council-controlled organisations.
2018/19
$000
Surplus/(deficit) for the year before tax
Prima facie tax expense at 28%
Plus/(less) tax effect of permanent differences
Tax (expense)/benefit
Less loss offset
Tax (expense)/benefit net of loss offset
Comprising:
Current tax
Total
Tax assets/(liabilities)
Balance as at 30 June
Charged to surplus or deficit
Charged to other comprehensive revenue and expense
Closing balance
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2017/18
$000
4,457
(1,248)
1,257
9
9

(1,343)
376
(388)
(12)
(12)

9
9

(12)
(12)

2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000
(10)
10
-

(4)
6
(12)
(10)

Note 6: Investments ($000’s)
2018/19
$000
Current investments
Cash and fixed revenue investments
Total current investments

2017/18
$000
5,000
5,000

10,000
10,000

Non-current investments:
Civic Financial Services Ltd
Marlborough Forestry Corporation
Borrower notes in NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd (NZLGFA)
Total non-current investments

244
354
512
1,110

231
335
480
1,046

Total investments

6,110

11,046

The carrying amounts of term deposits approximate their fair value. The effective interest rate for cash was 1.68% (2018 1.73%) and
the fixed interest rate was 3.87% (2018 3.38%).
Civic Financial Services Ltd and Marlborough Forestry Corporation assets are recorded at fair value. Where there is no active market,
net asset backing has been used to approximate the fair value of these assets. Due to the immaterial size and nature of the Council’s
investment in the LGFA, the Council has estimated the fair value of this investment based on the LGFA’s net asset backing as at 30
June.
There were no impairment provisions for these investments.

Note 7: Receivables & accruals ($000’s)
2018/19
$000
Current receivables and accruals
Trade receivables
Rates receivable
Accrued revenue
Prepayments
GST receivable

2017/18
$000

Provision for impairment
Total current receivables and accruals
Non current receivables and accruals
Prepayments
Total non current receivables and accruals
Total accounts receivable

5,689
8,587
5,928
981
634
21,818
(208)
21,610

4,655
5,989
6,379
977
1,329
19,330
(192)
19,137

461
461
22,071

436
436
19,573

Total receivables comprise:
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Receivables from exchange transactions

20,069
1,541

17,642
1,495

Debtors and other receivables are non-interest bearing and receipt is normally due by the 20th of the following month. Therefore
the carrying value of debtors and other receivables approximates their fair value.
Environment Canterbury does not provide for any impairment on rates receivable as it has various powers under the Local Government
(Rating) Act 2002 to recover any outstanding debts. Ratepayers can apply for payment plan options in special circumstances. Where
such payment plans are in place, debts are discounted to the present value of future payments.
The impairment provision has been calculated by reviewing all debtors individually at year end and estimating the expected losses
from each debtor based on historic default trends.

55

MOVEMENTS IN THE PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES
2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000

Opening balance
Additional provision
Provisions reversed
Receivables written off during year
Closing balance

192
51
(35)
208

247
17
(72)
192

The carrying amount of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired, but for which terms have been negotiated is
$16,662 (2018 $33,478).
THE AGEING PROFILE OF RECEIVABLES

Gross
Not past due
Past due 1 - 60 days
Past due > 60 days
Total accounts receivable

16,667
5,393
220
22,279

2018/19
$000
Impairment
(45)
(17)
(147)
(208)

Net
16,622
5,376
73
22,071

2017/18
$000
Gross Impairment
13,799
(33)
5,353
(7)
613
(154)
19,765
(192)

Net
13,767
5,347
460
19,573

Environment Canterbury holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements that are either past due or impaired.

Note 8: Clean Heat loans ($000’s)
Clean Heat Loans

2018/19
$000

Book value current portion
Book value non current portion
Total Clean Heat loans receivable
Healthier Homes Loans
Book value current portion
Book value non current portion
Total Healthier Homes loans receivable
Total Clean Heat and Healthier Homes loans receivable

2017/18
$000
344
214
558

449
586
1,034

39
409
449
1,007

1,034

Loans for the Clean Heat project are provided at nil interest. These loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. The face value of loans outstanding is $587,732 (2018 $1,111,882).
The discount rates to calculate the face value for the loans outstanding for 2019 were between 4.06% and 8.75%, and average of
6.41% (2018 6.41%).
Healthier Homes project loans are provided at an interest rate of 5.9%, and as a result, no discount has been applied to the face
value of these loans. These loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Note 9: Inventories ($000’s)
2018/19
$000
Inventories

2017/18
$000
284

611

Environment Canterbury only holds inventories for distribution; no inventories are pledged as security for liabilities (2018 nil). The
carrying amount of inventories for distribution is measured at weighted average cost.
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(4,566)
(3,312)
(561)
(2,018)
(8,711)
(19,168)

(372)
(594)
(966)
(187)
(187)

(20,321)

11,577
48,663
8,151
2,261
3,830
12,559
3,333
90,373

513,571
11,541
2,580
527,692

312,884
312,884

930,950

910,629

312,697
312,697

513,200
11,541
1,986
526,727

11,577
44,097
4,839
1,700
1,812
3,847
3,333
71,205

14,109

226
226

5,362
79
1,025
6,465

1,679
575
1,661
38
1,553
1,912
7,418

Additions
$000

(3,501)

(267)
(267)

(145)
(145)

(425)
(500)
(934)
(397)
(22)
(811)
(3,089)

(4,674)

(71)
(71)

(373)
(92)
(465)

(2,307)
(570)
(213)
(279)
(768)
(4,138)

34,620

33,781
33,781

-

(761)
1,601
839

974,442

346,366
346,366

518,933
11,475
3,605
534,013

12,070
48,860
8,878
2,299
4,986
14,448
2,522
94,063

(17,863)

-

(745)
(686)
(1,431)

(3,882)
(775)
(2,296)
(9,480)
(16,432)

956,578

346,366
346,366

518,188
11,475
2,919
532,582

12,070
48,860
4,996
1,524
2,690
4,969
2,522
77,631

5 Environment Canterbury forestry assets are primarily for the flood protection benefits that it provides. Forestry forms an important part of the protection schemes for several of the region’s rivers. The primary
purpose for the forestry asset is for the management of land of river banks and adjacent land owned by the Council. Forestry assets are revalued on a three yearly cycle and were revalued as at 30 June 2017
by Council staff and independently reviewed by registered forestry consultant Owen Springford.

4 Land and buildings of the same class are revalued every three years in line with Council policy. Valuations were undertaken at 31 May 2019 by Quotable Value New Zealand (a NZ registered valuation provider).
River control works and land drainage schemes were valued at 31 May 2017 at replacement cost, based on methods developed by the Council’s engineers. Flood protection assets with a defined life are valued
at depreciated replacement cost, all others are valued at replacement cost. The method was independently reviewed by AECOM New Zealand Ltd who determined the method to be appropriate.
Restricted assets have been valued at fair value. Valuations were carried out by registered valuers Quotable Value New Zealand Ltd as at 31 May 2019.

3 Impairment and Disposals are reported net of accumulated depreciation.

2 During the period, computer equipment totalling $871,415 was purchased, sold and leased back under finance leases on the same dates (2018: $304,662). The initial purchase and sale of the equipment are
not subject to depreciation nor are they included within computer equipment additions and disposals.
The net carrying amount of computer equipment held under finance leases is $1,144,191 (2018 $708,202) which includes the acquisitions during the period.

5,395

-

-

5,395
5,395

Accumulated
Closing
Carrying
Revaluation
Depreciation
Disposals3 Impairment Depreciation
Cost/
value
Surplus4
and
$000
$000
$000
Revaluation
30 June 2019
$000
Impairment
$000
$000
$000

1 There was one building held for sale in 2019 (2018: nil). This is disclosed separately in current assets.

Operational Assets
Land 1
Buildings
Motor vehicles
Furniture & fittings
Computer equipment 2
Plant & equipment
Capital WIP
Total Operational Assets
Infrastructural Assets
Flood protection and control
works
Forests 5
Wells
Total Infrastructural Asset
Restricted Assets
Land reserves 6
Total Restricted Assets
Total Property, Plant &
Equipment

2018/19

Accumulated
Opening
Carrying
Depreciation
Cost/
value
and
Revaluation
1 July 2018
Impairment
$000
$000
$000

Note 10: Property, plant and equipment ($000’s)
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Insurance disclosure - The gross replacement cost of Flood protection and control works is $518,188,471 (2018 $507,664,034).
The carrying value of assets insured is $48,990,993 (2018 $48,935,585); the sum insured is $78,764,262 (2018: $86,283,911).
Environment Canterbury does not participate in any other financial risk sharing arrangements, all other assets (carrying value $881,046,838) (2018 $827,988,812) are self insured.
The value of the fund for the purpose of self insurance is $10,852,360 (2018 $6,892,187).

6 The carrying amount of restricted assets represents the estimated value of that land in an open market transaction between a willing buyer and willing seller. The purpose in reporting restricted asset value
in this way is to provide a meaningful and realistic representation of the amount and worth of land for which the Council has stewardship responsibilities, it is not intended to represent net realisable value
to the Council. As this land was mostly vested in the Council by the Crown, the Crown would generally be entitled to any proceeds from sales of this land. It should be noted that disposals of this type of land
are extremely rare and the Council's role is to hold this land in perpetuity.
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Operational Assets
Land 1
Buildings
Motor vehicles
Furniture & fittings
Computer equipment 2
Plant & equipment
Capital WIP
Total Operational Assets
Infrastructural Assets
Flood protection and control
works
Forests 5
Wells
Total Infrastructural Asset
Restricted Assets
Land reserves 6
Total Restricted Assets
Total Property, Plant &
Equipment

2017/18

(2,251)
(2,741)
(367)
(1,751)
(8,160)
(15,270)

(517)
(517)
(93)
(93)

(15,879)

11,567
48,391
6,689
1,965
4,001
12,131
1,401
86,144

508,589
11,936
2,323
522,849

313,123
313,123

922,116

905,930

313,030
313,030

508,589
11,936
1,807
522,333

11,567
46,140
3,948
1,598
1,943
3,971
1,401
70,567

Accumulated
Opening
Carrying
Depreciation
Cost/
value
and
Revaluation
1 July 2017
Impairment
$000
$000
$000

12,201

25
25

4,982
17
257
5,256

10
326
2,554
297
1,050
750
1,932
6,920

Additions
$000

(2,780)

(264)
(264)

(413)
(413)

(54)
(1,092)
(1)
(931)
(25)
(2,104)

-

-

-

-

(4,948)

(94)
(94)

(372)
(78)
(449)

(2,315)
(571)
(194)
(557)
(768)
(4,405)

-

-

-

-

931,537

312,884
312,884

513,571
11,541
2,580
527,692

11,577
48,663
8,151
2,261
4,120
12,855
3,333
90,960

(20,827)

(187)
(187)

(372)
(594)
(966)

(4,566)
(3,312)
(561)
(2,308)
(8,927)
(19,675)

910,709

312,697
312,697

513,200
11,541
1,986
526,727

11,577
44,097
4,839
1,700
1,812
3,928
3,333
71,286

Accumulated
Closing
Carrying
Revaluation
Depreciation
Disposals3 Impairment Depreciation
Cost/
value
Surplus4
and
$000
$000
$000
Revaluation
30 June 2018
$000
Impairment
$000
$000
$000

Note 11: Intangible assets ($000’s)
2018/19
$000

Software

2017/18
$000

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Balance at year end
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at beginning of year
Amortisation expense
Amortisation relating to disposals
Balance at year end
Carrying amounts
As at beginning of year
Balance at year end
New Zealand emission units
Opening balance at 1 July
Revaluation of New Zealand units
Closing balance at 30 June

13,049
910
13,959

12,041
1,008
13,049

9,485
1,373
10,858

8,073
1,411
9,485

3,565
3,102

3,968
3,565

2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000
5,137
1,397
6,534

4,187
949
5,137

The Council holds 282,817 New Zealand units as part of the emission trading scheme (2018: 243,400). An additional 39,417 units
were received in 2018/19 based on stored carbon in the Council's forests. All units were recognised at fair value when the units were
issued and subsequently revalued at balance date. The shares have been valued at the lowest price available which is $23.10 NZU
(2018 $21.10 NZU). $1.397 million has been recognised in other comprehensive revenue (2018 $0.949 million).
Environment Canterbury has received New Zealand units in partial compensation for the loss in value of land with pre-1990 forests.
These units were allocated under the Climate Change Response Act 2002 and its amendments. If deforestation of the pre-1990
forests occurs, the potential liability may exceed the compensation received of 282,817 New Zealand Units.

Note 12: Accounts Payable & accruals ($000’s)
2018/19
$000
Trade payables
Accounts payable and accruals
Accrued salaries and wages
Total accounts payable and accruals
Total payables comprise:
Payables from non-exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions

2017/18
$000

4,125
11,776
1,397
17,298

3,670
18,269
1,303
23,242

2,090
15,208

2,708
20,534

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms. Therefore, the carrying value of trade
and other payables approximates their fair value.

Note 13: Employee entitlements ($000’s)
2018/19
$000
Annual leave
Sick leave
Total employee entitlement liabilities
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2017/18
$000
3,570
136
3,706

3,380
125
3,505

Note 14: Other financial liabilities ($000’s)
2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000

(a) Current
Lease liabilities
Bank loan
Borrowings - NZLGFA
Total current

396
6,000
6,396

283
283

(b) Non Current
Lease liabilities
Borrowings - NZLGFA
Total non current

749
32,000
32,749

425
30,000
30,425

ANALYSIS OF FINANCE LEASES
Total minimum lease payments are payable
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not more than five years
Later than five years
Total minimum lease payments
Future finance charge
Present value of minimum lease payments
Present value of minimum lease payments are payable
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not more than five years
Later than five years
Total minimum lease payments

2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000

470
833
1,303
159
1,144

328
462
790
(82)
708

396
749
1,144

283
425
708

During the period, Environment Canterbury acquired equipment totalling $871,415 (2018 $304,662) by way of finance leases. The
carrying amount of leased items within each class of property, plant and equipment is shown in Note 10. There are no restrictions
placed on Environment Canterbury by any of the finance leasing arrangements.
The rate of interest applied to lease liabilities is 7.5% (2018 7.5%).
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Note 15: Equity ($000’s)
General and other reserves
General accumulated funds
Opening balance
Operating surplus for the year
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
AFS reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Asset replacement reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Contracts reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Other reserves
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Targeted rate reserves:
Biosecurity reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Catchment rating district reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Civil defence reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Clean heat reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Transfer (to)/from Healthier Homes reserve
Closing balance
Healthier Homes Canterbury reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Transfer (to)/from Clean heat reserve
Closing balance
Energy efficiency reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Passenger transport reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
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2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000

1,202
(1,174)
(94)
(67)
919
86
1,005
7,281
2,073
9,354
330
(61)
269
3,463
134
3,597
2018/19
$000

4,245
(1,355)
The revenue appropriation account for general funds.
(1,688)
1,202
300 Reserves to provide for development and maintenance of
619 office buildings.
919
5,309 To provide sufficient funding to maintain service level
1,973 capability of existing assets.
7,281
393
Reserves to fund on-going contractual obligations.
(63)
330
303 Proceeds from sale of land. Legislation restricts how this
3,160 can be applied.
3,463
2017/18
$000

37
2
39
(9,432)
(4,110)
(13,542)

35
Reserves to assist with initial response to pest incursion.
2
37
(7,827) Reserves to fund planned and unplanned maintenance and
(1,606) repair of flood protection schemes.
(9,432)

(720)
158
(561)

(581) Reserves for the provision of civil defence emergency
(138) management operations within the Canterbury region.
(720)

1,475
6
61
1,542

2,044
Reserves for Clean Heat programmes in the Canterbury
(570)
region.
1,475

(173)
(61)
(233)
355
(213)
142
4,137
649
4,786

Reserves for Healhier Homes programmes in the Canterbury
region.
352 Reserves that are restricted to energy efficiency
3 programmes in the Canterbury region.
355
3,916 Reserves to ensure funding is available to provide an
221 uninterrupted passenger transport service
4,137

Pest rating districts reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Regional park reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Air quality reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Water study reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Capital and asset reserves:

1,542
513
2,055

1,381 Reserves to enable quick response to meet obligations
162 under the Regional Pest Management Strategy
1,542

(358)
42
(316)

(423) Reserves for the provision of regional park activities within
64 the Canterbury region.
(358)

(356)
439
82

(198) Reserves for the provision of strategic air quality services
(158) for the Canterbury region.
(356)

(79)
(1,653)
(1,732)
2018/19
$000

Asset revaluation reserve
Opening balance
Cash flow hedge movement
Gain/(loss) on revaluation
Transfer (to)/from capital reserve
Investment revaluation movement
Impairment losses
Transfer to general funds on disposal
Closing balance
Capital reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Transfer (to)/from asset revaluation reserve
Closing balance
Total equity

947,370

2,080 Reserves for the provision of strategic water services for
(2,159) the Canterbury region.
(79)
2017/18
$000

744,116

743,567

41,117
425
32
(5,525)
(215)
779,950

949 Reserves generated by movements in: investments – note
- 6, property plant, and equipment – note 10, and intangible
64 assets - note 11.
(464)
744,116

153,369
8,056
(425)
161,000

152,727
Represents the Council’s investment in fixed and
642
infrastructural assets.
153,369
907,280

The Council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayers’ funds) which includes retained earnings and reserves. The Local Government Act
2002 requires the Council to manage its finances prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of the
community. Ratepayers’ funds are a derivative of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and other general
financial dealings. The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the
Local Government Act 2002 and applied by the Council. Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of
utilising the Council’s assets and does not require them to meet the full cost of long-term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future
generations.
Additionally, the Council has in place asset management plans for major classes of assets detailing renewal and maintenance
programmes, to ensure ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and maintenance.
Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct from the general rate.
Any surplus or deficit, relating to these separate areas of benefit, is applied to the specific reserves. Self insurance reserves are built
up annually from general rates and are made available for specific unforeseen events. The release of these funds can only generally
be approved by Council. Environment Canterbury operates a centralised treasury function with the key purpose to minimise its cost
of funds. Environment Canterbury does not operate an internal borrowing programme as defined in the Local Government Act 2002.
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Note 16: Cash flow reconciliation with net surplus ($000’s)

Net surplus/(deficit) per Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense

2018/19
$000
4,466

2017/18
$000
(1,355)

5,890
(48)
(64)
16
203
(5,525)
(4,131)
(3,657)

6,327
(82)
(80)
401
167
6,734

(2,487)
(28)
80
(4,918)
(982)
(8,335)

(2,915)
(21)
247
6,435
52
3,797

10,299
10,299
2,772

(7,256)
(7,256)
1,920

Add/(deduct) Non Cash Items
Depreciation and amortisation
(Increase)/decrease in Clean Heat investment
(Increase)/decrease in other investments
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Non-cash movement in provisions
Property, plant and equipment impairment
Property, plant and equipment acquisition
Add/(deduct) movements in Working Capital
(Increase)/decrease in receivables and accruals
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in payables and accruals
Increase/(decrease) in revenue in advance
Add/(deduct) items classified as investing or financing activity
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash flows from operating activities

Note 17: Commitments ($000’s)
Operating lease commitments:

2018/19
$000

Payable no later than one year
Later than one year and no later than five years
Later than five years
Total operating lease commitments
Capital commitments

2017/18
$000
499
725
1,224

628
901
1,530

374

-

Note 18: Operating lease rental income commitments ($000’s)
Operating lease rental revenue
Receivable no later than one year
Later than one year and no later than five years
Later than five years
Total operating lease rental revenue

2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000
5,314
17,251
37,004
59,569

Environment Canterbury receives revenue from land leases, income commitments are as per the table above.
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5,054
17,056
39,147
61,256

Note 19: Related party transactions
During the 2018/19 financial year, Environment Canterbury was the ultimate parent of the following company:
Environment Canterbury Limited
Environment Canterbury Limited was a non-trading company held for the purposes of name protection. Environment Canterbury
had exempted this entity from reporting as a Council Controlled Organisation under section 7 of the Local Government Act 2002.
As this entity was non-trading, there were no performance targets or other measures by which the performance was to be judged
by the Council.
Environment Canterbury Limited was removed from the companies register under section 318 of the Companies Act 1993 on 2 August
2018.
Council does not have any investments in Council Controlled Organisations.

KEY PERSONNEL
During the year key personnel were involved in minor transactions with Environment Canterbury (such as payment of rates, resource
consent applications etc). All such transactions were part of a normal customer relationship.
No provision has been required for impairment of receivables for any loans or other receivables to related parties (2018 $nil).
Remuneration for key personnel is valued at agreed total annual remuneration, which includes the values of non-financial benefits,
as required by clause 32A, schedule 10 of Local Government Act 2002.
Base remuneration for each Councillor is set in accordance with the Remuneration Authority Determination. Total remuneration as
disclosed includes remuneration for membership of Council committees, as well as reimbursement for mileage expenses incurred
in the performance of duties. The value of these reimbursements can vary between years in accordance with duties performed in
the year concerned. All other relevant expenses are reimbursed at cost in accordance with the Councillors' expenses policy.
Remuneration of members and Chief Executive Officer
David Bedford
David Caygill
Iaean Cranwell
Rod Cullinane
Elizabeth Cunningham
Tom Lambie
Stephen Lowndes
Claire McKay
Lan Pham
Cynthia Roberts
Peter Scott
Peter Skelton
John Sunckell
Total Councillor remuneration
Bill Bayfield, Chief Executive

2018/19

2017/18

76,751
80,139
82,225
75,191
90,923
166,979
87,992
82,085
79,971
106,205
80,472
79,749
1,088,682

12,286
79,227
95,839
81,501
73,106
113,037
164,551
85,183
77,981
95,810
105,815
78,309
86,534
1,149,179

417,731

416,099
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2018/19
$000

Key management personnel compensation
Councillors
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
Executive Leadership Team
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
Chief Executive Officer
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
Total

2017/18
$000

1,088,682
12

1,149,179
12

1,158,460
5

1,104,185
5

417,731
1
2,664,873

416,099
1
2,669,463

COUNCIL STAFFING LEVELS AND REMUNERATION
At balance date the Council employed 523 full-time employees (2018: 473), with an additional 107 part-time staff (2018: 135)
representing 69 full-time equivalent employees (2018: 101). A full-time employee is defined as a staff member working 37.5 hours
per week if they were employed before 16 December 2014, 40 hours per week if employed after this date.
Total annual remuneration, by band, for employees as at 30 June, based on head count is disclosed below:
2018/19
$000

Band
Under $59,999
$60,000-$79,999
$80,000-$99,999
$100,000-$119,999
$120,000-$139,999
$140,000-$159,999
$160,000-$179,999
$180,000-$239,999
$240,000-$419,999
Total

Band
141
217
143
72
28
11
9
6
3
630

Under $59,999
$60,000-$79,999
$80,000-$99,999
$100,000-$119,999
$120,000-$139,999
$140,000-$159,999
$160,000-$179,999
$180,000-$259,999
$260,000-$419,999
Total

2017/18
$000
149
208
136
64
28
7
9
6
1
608

Total annual remuneration includes salary and any other non-financial benefits for the year, such as private use of a Council motor
vehicle.
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Note 20: Financial instrument risks ($000’s)
Environment Canterbury is risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities. As part of its normal operations
the Council is exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Council’s exposure to these risks, and the action that
the Council has taken to minimise the impact of these risks, are outlined as follows:
CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligations to the Council, resulting in a loss to the Council. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at balance date is the fair value of the financial instruments as stated in the Statement of Financial Position.
Significant concentrations of credit risk apply principally in respect of bank accounts, investments and receivables. In the case of
bank accounts and investments, the Council reduces the risk by diversification and investing with high credit rated institutions, in
accordance with Council’s investment policy. The following table shows the credit ratings, credit risk and maturity periods of
Environment Canterbury’s financial assets and liabilities:
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and accruals
Clean Heat and Healthier Homes Loans
Investments – managed investment portfolio

Investments – Civic Financial Services Ltd, Marlborough Forestry
Corporation and NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd
(LGFA)

Credit Rating
AA
AA*
*
AAA
AA
AAA
BBB
Unrated
*

2018/19
$000

2017/18
$000

11,704
19,994
1,007
3,700
1,300
-

13,319
16,831
1,034
10,000
-

1,110

1,046

38,814

42,231

* Where receivables have arisen from the Council’s statutory functions, there are no procedures to monitor credit quality with
reference to external credit ratings.
The Council’s main source of revenue is rates, which are collected on behalf of the Council by the relevant authorities, which exercise
powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding debt. The Council has no significant concentrations
of credit risk in relation to receivables.
INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the Council’s financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Council is exposed to interest rate risk from its interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The Council is
risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure arising from its treasury activities. Investment and borrowing are undertaken in accordance
with the Council’s investment and liability management practises. These policies do not allow Environment Canterbury to enter into
any speculative transactions.
Environment Canterbury will manage its interest rate risks by adhering to the fixed and floating rate borrowing percentages has
defined in Environment Canterbury’s Liability Management & Treasury policies the application of which depends on the term of its
outstanding debt.
If interest rates on financial assets had fluctuated by plus or minus 0.5%, the effect would have been to increase/decrease interest
revenue by $74,915 (2018 $109,314) and expenditure by $163,329 (2018 $145,274).
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LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that Council will not be able to fund its commitments as they fall due. Facilities are maintained in accordance
with the Council’s investment and liability management policies. The Council maintains sufficient funds in short-term facilities to
cover all obligations as they fall due.
The following table shows a contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities:

2018/19

Total

Contractual Less than 1
cash flows
year

1-2 years

2-5 years

More
than 5
years

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and accruals
Clean Heat and Healthier Homes loans
Investments
Total

11,704
19,994
1,007
6,110
38,814

11,704
19,994
588
6,110
38,396

11,704
19,994
383
5,000
37,081

233
233

163
163

228
1,110
1,338

Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Accounts payable and accruals
Total

1,144
15,208
16,352

38,000
15,208
53,208

396
15,208
15,604

311
311

437
437

-

2017/18

Total

Contractual Less than 1
cash flows
year

1-2 years

2-5 years

More
than 5
years

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and accruals
Clean Heat loans
Investments
Total

13,319
16,831
1,034
11,046
42,231

13,319
16,831
1,112
11,046
42,308

13,319
16,831
449
10,000
40,599

363
363

222
222

1,046
1,046

Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Accounts payable and accruals
Total

708
20,533
21,241

30,000
20,533
50,533

283
20,533
20,816

234
234

191
191

-

Note 21: Contingent assets and liabilities
Local Government Funding Agency
The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (LGFA), which commenced in December 2011, is the alternative debt
provider majority owned by and operated for local authorities. Council is not a shareholder but participates as one of 53 borrowers
and guarantors of LGFA. When Council borrows through the LGFA they are required to invest 1.6% of the proceeds back with the
LGFA as borrower notes which the LGFA retain as capital. Also, together with other guarantors, the Council is a guarantor of all of
the LGFA’s borrowings. At 30 June 2019, the LGFA had borrowings totalling $9.49 billion (2018 $8.57 billion).
There are no other significant contingent liabilities (2018: nil). There are no significant contingent assets at balance date (2018: nil).

Note 22: Post balance date events
There are no significant post balance date events.
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Note 23: Rating base information
CANTERBURY PROPERTY VALUES AS AT 30/06/2018 INCLUDING THOSE THAT WERE NON-RATEABLE
Local Authority
Kaikoura
Hurunui
Waimakariri
Christchurch
Selwyn
Ashburton
Timaru
Mackenzie
Waimate
Waitaki
Totals

Properties
3,237
8,454
26,516
172,388
26,935
15,861
22,714
4,921
4,463
2,062
287,551

Capital Value
1,591,174,000
6,986,265,360
16,215,701,265
106,054,467,858
21,751,394,100
17,142,100,550
14,041,207,500
4,221,382,020
4,799,556,550
2,306,435,800
195,109,685,003

Land Value
948,754,100
4,495,776,060
7,598,202,850
46,139,781,650
11,298,261,250
11,543,940,450
7,182,053,900
2,275,665,700
3,169,315,200
994,385,800
95,646,136,960

Note 24: Capital management
The Council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayers’ funds), which comprise accumulated funds and reserves. Equity is represented by
net assets.
The LGA requires the Council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings
prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of the community. Ratepayers’ funds are largely managed
as a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings.
The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the LGA and applied
by the Council. Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of utilising the Council’s assets and not
expecting them to meet the full cost of long-term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future generations. Additionally, the Council
has in place asset management plans for major classes of assets detailing renewal and maintenance programmes, to ensure that
ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and maintenance.
The LGA requires the Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Long-Term Plan (LTP) and in its annual plan (where
applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identified in those plans. The LGA also sets out the factors that the Council is required
to consider when determining the most appropriate sources of funding for each of its activities. The sources and levels of funding
are set out in the funding and financial policies in the Council’s LTP.
The Council has the following Council-created reserves:
• reserves for different areas of benefit;
• self-insurance reserves; and
• trust and bequest reserves.
Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct from payers of general
rates. Any surplus or deficit relating to these separate areas of benefit is applied to the specific reserves.
Self-insurance reserves are built up annually from general rates and are made available for specific unforeseen events. The release
of these funds can generally be approved only by the Council.
Trust and bequest reserves are set up where the Council has been donated funds that are restricted for particular purposes. Interest
is added to trust and bequest reserves where applicable, and deductions are made where funds have been used for the purpose
they were donated.
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Disclosure statement
ANNUAL REPORT DISCLOSURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2019
WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THIS STATEMENT?
The purpose of this statement is to disclose the council’s financial performance in relation to various benchmarks to enable the
assessment of whether the council is prudently managing its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and general financial dealings.
The council is required to include this statement in its annual report in accordance with the Local Government (Financial Reporting
and Prudence) Regulations 2014 (the regulations). Refer to the regulations for more information, including definitions of some of the
terms used in this statement.

RATES AFFORDABILITY BENCHMARK
The council meets the rates affordability benchmark if • its actual rates income equals or is less than each quantified limit on rates; and
• its actual rates increases equal or are less than each quantified limit on rates increases.

Rates (income) affordability
The following graph compares the council’s actual rates income with a quantified limit on rates contained in the financial strategy
included in the council’s long-term plan. The quantified limit is total rates will not exceed 70% of total revenue in any given year.
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Rates (increases) affordability
The following graph compares the council’s actual rates increases with a quantified limit on rates increases included in the financial
strategy included in the council’s long-term plan. The quantified limit in the 2018-28 Long-Term Plan is 6%.
In 2015 the increase in the total rates exceeded the limit set in the Financial Strategy. This arose because of an increase in the rating
base which occurred as a result of new building construction exceeding building demolition throughout the year. Because this portion
of the increase in rates is collected from new rating units, existing ratepayers did not receive any additional increase in their rates
as a direct result of this increase in the rating base.
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DEBT AFFORDABILITY BENCHMARK
The council meets the debt affordability benchmark if its actual borrowing is within each quantified limit on borrowing.
The following graph compares the councils' actual borrowing with a quantified limit on borrowing stated in the financial strategy
included in the council’s long term plan. The quantified limit is 175% of total rates revenue.
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BALANCED BUDGET BENCHMARK
The following graph displays the council’s revenue (excluding development contributions, financial contributions, vested assets,
gains on derivative financial instruments and revaluations of property, plant or equipment) as a proportion of operating expenses
(excluding losses on derivative financial instruments and revaluations of property, plant and equipment).
The council meets this benchmark if its revenue equals or is greater than its operating expenses.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENT
Environment Canterbury did not meet this benchmark in 2017/18 or 2018/19. As per the Annual Plan 2017/18 and the Long Term Plan
2018-28, Council approved the use of reserves to meet expenditure requirements as part of prudent financial management in order
to promote the current and future interests of the community.
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ESSENTIAL SERVICES BENCHMARK
The following graph displays the council’s capital expenditure on network services (i.e Flood Protection) as a proportion of depreciation
on network services. The council meets this benchmark if its capital expenditure on network services equals or is greater than
depreciation on network services.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENT
Environment Canterbury does not depreciate Flood Protection stop banks because stopbanks are maintained to an agreed level of
service. Items such as flood gates etc are depreciated but the value of that is small in comparison to the overall Flood Protection
capital spend. In addition, a major construction and capitalisation of a new stop bank is underway. This explains why the benchmark
is exceeded by such a large extent as will always be the case during an increase in underlying capital assets.
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DEBT SERVICING BENCHMARK
The following graph displays the council’s borrowing costs as a proportion of revenue (excluding development contributions, financial
contributions, vested assets, gains on derivative financial instruments and revaluations of property, plant or equipment).
Because Statistics New Zealand projects the council’s population will grow faster than the national population growth rate, it meets
the debt servicing benchmark if its borrowing costs equal or are less than 10% of its revenue.
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DEBT CONTROL BENCHMARK
The following graph displays the council’s actual net debt as a proportion of planned net debt. In this statement net debt means
financial liabilities less financial assets (excluding trade and other receivables). The council meets the debt control benchmark if its
actual net debt equals or is less than its planned net debt.
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OPERATIONS CONTROL BENCHMARK
This graph displays the council’s actual net cash flows from operations as a proportion of its planned net cash flow from operations.
The council meets the operations control benchmark if its actual net cash flow from operations equals or is greater than its planned
net cash flow from operations.
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THE ORGANISATION
Councillors and their responsibilities
The Councillors during 2018/19 were:
Steve Lowndes - Chairman
Peter J Scott - Deputy Chair
Hon David Caygill, CNZM
Iaean Cranwell
Rod Cullinane
Elizabeth Cunningham
Tom Lambie
Claire McKay
Lan Pham
Dr Cynthia Roberts
Professor Peter Skelton, CNZM
John Sunckell
These Councillors form the full Council and also have responsibilities on various committees.
PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
This committee deals with audit, external financial reporting, financial risk management, internal control, strategic performance
management and operational performance. John Sunckell is the Chair and Peter Scott is the Deputy Chair. Claire McKay, Steve
Lowndes, Peter Scott, Iaean Cranwell, and John Sunckell make up the Performance, Audit and Risk Committee.
REGULATION HEARING COMMITTEE
This committee has delegated functions to appoint hearings commissioners under Resource Management Act processes and make
decisions on resource consent applications in accordance with delegated powers. Peter Skelton is Chair of this committee, with
members Elizabeth Cunningham, Tom Lambie, Lan Pham, Claire McKay and Peter Scott.
CANTERBURY REGIONAL TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
This is a statutory committee of Environment Canterbury, under the Land Transport Management Act, with two elected members
from Environment Canterbury, one member from each territorial authority, and one representative from the New Zealand Transport
Agency. This group prepares the Regional Land Transport Plan which sets out Canterbury's land transport objectives, policies,
10-year priorities and associated activities and investment plan, and advises and assists Environment Canterbury on any other matter
relating to its transport responsibilities. Chair Steve Lowndes and Peter Scott are the Environment Canterbury representatives, with
Steve Lowndes as Chair and Peter Scott as Deputy Chair.
CANTERBURY CIVIL DEFENCE AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT GROUP JOINT COMMITTEE
This is a joint committee under the Civil Defence Emergency Management Act, made up of elected representatives from territorial
authorities and Environment Canterbury, exercising governance and determining Canterbury CDEM group emergency management
policy. John Sunckell is the Environment Canterbury representative.
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CANTERBURY MAYORAL FORUM
The Mayoral Forum is mandated by the Canterbury Local Authorities’ Triennial Agreement 2017-19 as the primary mechanism for
local government co-ordination and collaboration in Canterbury. Environment Canterbury Chair Steve Lowndes represents the
regional council on the Mayoral Forum. The Mayoral Forum initiated and continues to provide governance oversight of the Canterbury
Water Management Strategy.
CANTERBURY REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
This committee was established under the Local Government Act 2002 in accordance with the Canterbury Water Management
Strategy 2009, and is a committee of Environment Canterbury. The committee monitors progress of the implementation of the
Canterbury Water Management Strategy across the Canterbury region and provides advice to Environment Canterbury on regional
issues associated with implementation of the Canterbury Water Management Strategy. Peter Scott and Claire McKay are the
Environment Canterbury representatives.
CANTERBURY WATER MANAGEMENT STRATEGY ZONE COMMITTEES
The ten CWMS Zone Committees are joint committees between Environment Canterbury and the relevant territorial authority (city
or district council).
Kaikōura: Steve Lowndes
Hurunui-Waiau: Cynthia Roberts
Waimakariri: Claire McKay
Christchurch-West Melton: Tom Lambie
Banks Peninsula: Elizabeth Cunningham
Selwyn-Waihora: Iaean Cranwell
Ashburton: David Caygill
Orari-Temuka-Opihi-Pareora: Lan Pham
Upper Waitaki: John Sunckell
Lower Waitaki South Coastal Canterbury: Peter Scott
GREATER CHRISTCHURCH PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE
This is a joint committee under the Local Government Act comprising the Greater Christchurch Partners – Environment Canterbury,
Christchurch City Council, Waimakariri District Council, Selwyn District Council, Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu, Canterbury District Health
Board, New Zealand Transport Agency, Regenerate Christchurch and the Greater Christchurch Group of the Department of the Prime
Minister and Cabinet. This group determines an agreed strategic framework to manage growth and address urban development,
regeneration, resilience and long-term wellbeing for Greater Christchurch as expressed through the Greater Christchurch Urban
Development Strategy (2007) - the associated Strategy Update (2016), and the Greater Christchurch Future Development Strategy
('Our Space') 2019. Steve Lowndes, Cynthia Roberts and Peter Skelton are the Environment Canterbury representatives on the
committee.
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GREATER CHRISTCHURCH PUBLIC TRANSPORT JOINT COMMITTEE
This is a joint committee whose membership comprises three Environment Canterbury elected members, three Christchurch City
Council members, one Waimakariri District Council member, one Selwyn District Council member, and one representative from the
New Zealand Transport Agency. The committee provides leadership with respect to the provision of public transport services and
infrastructure in Greater Christchurch through the development (and implementation) of the Regional Public Transport Plan. Peter
Skelton, David Caygill and Steve Lowndes are the Environment Canterbury representatives on the committee.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT, PERFORMANCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
This committee acts for and advises Council on matters pertaining to the employment of the Council’s Chief Executive. Rod Cullinane,
Peter Scott, Steve Lowndes and Elizabeth Cunningham make up the committee membership.
PARTNERSHIP & CO-GOVERNANCE
Te Rōpū Tuia
The Council seeks to maintain durable relationships and partnerships with Māori (Ngāi Tahu Papatipu Rūnanga, Te Rūnanga o Ngāi
Tahu and Ngā Maata Waka) and give effect to the Council’s obligations under the Treaty of Waitangi, Ngāi Tahu Claims Settlement
Act 1998, Local Government Act 2002 and related obligations under the Resource Management Act 1991. Te Rōpū Tuia provides
leadership for mana whenua contributions to local government and environmental management within the greater Canterbury region.
Steve Lowndes is the Councillor responsible for this function. Te Rōpū Tuia membership includes the Chairpersons (or their nominee)
of all ten Canterbury Papatipu Rūnanga and all Councillors.
Additional to Te Rōpū Tuia, the Chair and Chief Executive of Environment Canterbury meet with the Kaiwhakahaere and Chief Executive
from Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu from time-to-time.
Te Waihora Co-Governance
The Te Waihora Co-Governance Agreement recognises the commitment of statutory agencies and Ngāi Tahu to share responsibility
for the restoration and management of Te Waihora/Lake Ellesmere and the wider Te Waihora Catchment. It was originally signed
between Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu and Environment Canterbury in 2012, with Selwyn District Council and Christchurch City Council
joining in 2014 and 2016 respectively. In 2018 the Department of Conservation, Te Papa Atawhai, accepted an invitation to join the
Co-Governance Group and they became a full member in June 2019 with the signing of a revised Co-Governance Agreement. The Te
Waihora Co-Governance Agreement jointly commits each organisation to independently dedicate resources and expertise to protect,
restore and enhance the lake and catchment.
Co-governance of the catchment is a specific goal in the Canterbury Water Management Strategy. Steve Lowndes, Elizabeth Cunningham
and Peter Skelton were the Environment Canterbury representatives on the Te Waihora Co-Governance Group in 2018/19. From June
2019, with the Department of Conservation Co-Governor joining the Group, Environment Canterbury has two representatives so
Elizabeth Cunningham stepped down.
COUNCIL PORTFOLIOS
Councillors are responsible for groups of activities, as follows:
Freshwater Management: Claire McKay (Portfolio Lead) and David Caygill, Peter Scott, John Sunckell, Lan Pham, Iaean Cranwell
Biodiversity/Biosecurity: Cynthia Roberts (Portfolio Lead), Iaean Cranwell, Tom Lambie
Hazards, Risk and Resilience: Elizabeth Cunningham (Portfolio Lead), Rod Cullinane, Lan Pham, John Sunckell
Transport and Urban Development: Peter Skelton (Urban Development Lead), Steve Lowndes, Cynthia Roberts, David Caygill (Transport
Lead) and Peter Scott
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Air quality: Peter Scott (Portfolio Lead) and John Sunckell
Regional Leadership: Steve Lowndes (Portfolio Lead) and full Council
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Groups and Directors' contact details
BILL BAYFIELD
Chief Executive
bill.bayfield@ecan.govt.nz

KATHERINE TROUGHT
Director Strategy and Planning
katherine.trought@ecan.govt.nz

NADEINE DOMMISSE
Chief Operating Officer
nadeine.dommisse@ecan.govt.nz

MILES MCCONWAY
Director Finance and Corporate Services
miles.mcconway@ecan.govt.nz

STEFANIE RIXECKER
Director Science
stefanie.rixecker@ecan.govt.nz

TAFFLYN BRADFORD-JAMES
Director Communications and Engagement
tafflyn.bradford-james@ecan.govt.nz
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APPENDIX 1 - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENTS
Council funding impact statement
The council is required to include Funding Impact Statements in its annual report in accordance with the Local Government (Financial
Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014 (the regulations). Refer to the regulations for more information, including definitions of
some of the terms used in this statement.
Annual Plan Actual
LTP
Actual
2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19
$000
$000
$000
$000
Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charge, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Interest and dividends from investments
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding (A)
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding (B)
Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A − B)
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions - Insurance proceeds
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding (C)
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
• to meet additional demand
• to improve the level of service
• to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding (D)
Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C − D)
Funding balance ((A − B) + (C − D))
Reconciliation of Operating Funding to Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and
expense
Surplus / (deficit) of operating funding
Adjust for other sources of non-cash funding excluded from the funding impact statement
Depreciation
Adjust for other income and expenditure for capital
Other revenue
Other non-operating income/(expenditure)
Tax expense
Surplus/(deficit) per statement of comprehensive income

32,356
33,139
61,720 63,136
62,770 64,485 38,074 39,295
35,101
33,334 34,430 34,897
33,972
33,521
35,581 34,570
618
750
743
460
3,982
251
2,797
164,817 169,210 170,798 175,155
161,089 165,177
1,188
1,145
162,277 166,322
2,540
2,889
4,154
300
4,454

2,095
2,095

10,672
1,746
7,899
8,193
(4,140) (4,955)
(7,437)
6,994
4,984
(2,540) (2,889)
-

164,479 169,627
1,296
1,148
165,776 170,775
5,022 4,380
2,912
4,726
1,128
8,766

8,436
5,891
14,327

3,240
2,119
16,876
11,314
(1,721) 10,211
(4,607) (4,936)
13,788 18,707
(5,022) (4,380)
-

2,540

2,889

5,022

4,380

(6,680)

(6,327)

(6,743)

(5,814)

(4,140)

2,095
(12)
(1,355)

(1,721)

5,891
9
4,466
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Air Quality

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense
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Long-Term
Plan
2017/18
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

1,218
2,110
185
3,513

1,318
2,057
100
3,475

1,318
2,090
125
3,533

2,439
86
1,067
3,592
(80)

2,468
1,263
3,731
(256)

2,043
39
1,461
3,543
(10)

(727)
(727)

2,501
2,501

-

-

-

-

162

-

-

(969)
(807)
80
-

249
1,996
2,245
256
-

99
(109)
(10)
10
-

202

223

307

Biodiversity and Biosecurity

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense

Long-Term
Plan
2017/18
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

4,398
3,841
156
105
8,501

7,614
2,077
73
9,763

7,614
2,067
698
230
10,608

6,305
2,168
8,474
27

6,719
2,916
9,636
128

6,993
3,093
10,086
523

-

-

-

-

-

-

11

-

-

16
27
(27)
-

11
117
128
(128)
-

523
523
(523)
-

27

107

290
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Freshwater Management

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense
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Long-Term
Plan
2017/18
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

25,775
15
25,790

27,150
2,220
919
30,289

27,150
0
1,210
1,286
29,647

17,125
7,846
24,971
818

19,401
40
10,877
30,319
(29)

18,258
13,445
31,703
(2,056)

-

1,340
1,340

-

-

-

-

884

-

2,119

268
(333)
818
(818)
-

2,961
(1,650)
1,311
29
-

(4,174)
(2,056)
2,056
-

803

1,074

1,846

Hazards, Risk and Resilience

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense

Long-Term
Plan
2017/18
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

6,008
2,656
1,405
10,069

7,939
10,736
786
7,551
27,013

7,939
11,008
1,704
7,536
28,187

7,106
3,086
10,192
(122)

17,753
456
6,608
24,817
2,196

18,537
236
8,420
27,194
993

-

4,000
4,000

-

-

-

-

-

3,240

-

113
(235)
(122)
122
-

(949)
3,906
6,196
(2,196)
-

6,820
(5,827)
993
(993)
-

336

852

1,268
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Regional Leadership

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense
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Long-Term
Plan
2017/18
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

19,596
384
8,893
28,873

16,917
417
8,391
25,725

18,334
1,675
7,880
27,889

16,718
11,732
28,450
422

15,183
12,093
27,277
(1,551)

16,654
53
12,414
29,121
(1,232)

-

-

-

-

-

-

53

-

-

19
350
422
(422)
-

51
(1,602)
(1,551)
1,551
-

(1,232)
(1,232)
1,232
-

392

626

1,525

Transport and Urban Development

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense

Long-Term
Plan
2017/18
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

1,010
20,225
25,931
25,742
72,908

781
23,204
31,006
19,541
74,531

781
24,130
29,610
20,385
74,907

70,138
2,326
72,464
444

70,713
48
2,461
73,221
1,311

71,763
2,678
74,441
466

-

1,326
1,400
2,726

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

444
444
(444)
-

2,754
1,283
4,037
(1,311)
-

466
466
(466)
-

1,185

453

617
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Flood Protection and Control Works

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense

Long-Term
Plan
2017/18
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

1,908
9,101
331
5,046
16,386

1,254
7,353
346
857
9,810

2,167
8,681
547
6,358
17,754

9,607
839
2,248
12,694
3,692

9,288
456
2,630
12,374
(2,564)

12,214
236
4,708
17,158
596

3,384
261
3,645

4,000
4,000

-

-

-

-

4,720

3,240

-

1,033
1,584
7,337
(3,692)
-

(949)
(855)
1,436
2,564
-

5,601
(5,005)
596
(596)
-

727

38

852

In accordance with the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014, a separate Funding Impact Statement
is produced for Flood Protection and Control Works.
Flood Protection and Control Works is part of the Hazards, Risk and Resilience portfolio at Environment Canterbury.
The amounts presented in the Flood Protection and Control Works Funding Impact Statement above for Long-Term Plan 2017/18
should be added to the amounts in the Hazards, Risk and Resilience Funding Impact Statement on page 87 to obtain the amount for
the total Hazards, Risk and Resilience portfolio.
As a result of a change in presentation in the 2018-28 Long-Term Plan, the Long-Term Plan 2018/19 and Actual 2018/19 amounts in
the Flood Protection and Control Works Funding Impact Statement above are included in the Hazards, Risk and Resilience Funding
Impact Statement on page 87.
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Thank you for your interest in the work of Environment Canterbury.
For more information please visit www.ecan.govt.nz where you can find the Long-Term Plan 2018-28, the 2019/20 Annual
Plan, previous annual reports, the region’s overarching plans and strategies, information about projects and activity underway
in the region, and real-time data such as river flows and air quality reporting.
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